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CHAIR KANE: ... (gavel). .. I'd like to call to order the Council's Budget and Finance
Committee meeting for. .. what is this, Tuesday, Members, August 29 t\ 2006. For the
record, we have in attendance for this afternoon's meetiug, the Vice-Chair of the
Committee, Member Hokama; as well as Members Carroll, Mateo, Molina, Pontanilla,
Tavares, Kane. Excused from this meeting Members Anderson and Johnson. I believe
Member Anderson is on her way in--and there she is. Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER T AVARES: Right on ... (inaudible) . ..
CHAIR KANE: So excused from the meeting is Member Johnson, she is also on her way to the
meeting as we speak. Thank you, Members, this afternoon, for your attendance. We
have a total of two items on the agenda this afternoon. The first item that we will take up
is Item Number 91, amending the Fiscal Year 2007 Budget regarding Karnole Weir
Water Treatment Facility Clearwell Replacement Project and Drinking Water State
Revolving Loan... Fund Loan. Members, the Committee is in receipt of the following,
first, Bill Number 47--as you recall, Members, we did have this ... brief discussion at
passage of first reading at our previous Council meeting. This bill is entitled: a bill for
an ordinance amending the Fiscal Year 2007 Budget for the County of Maui as it pertains
to Estimated Revenues, Capital Improvement Projects and Total Appropriations,
Operating and Capital Improvement Projects. And the purpose of the proposed, Bill
Number 47 of 2006 is to increase other. .. excuse me, Other Intergovernmental Revenues
and the appropriation in the Makawao-Pukalani-Kula Community Plan District for the
Karnole Weir Water Treatment Facility, which is what we call the WTF Clearwell
Replacement by 907,123 dollars. Members, there's a second bill, Number 48 of 2006
entitled: a bill for an ordinance authorizing the Mayor of the County of Maui to enter
into an intergovernmental agreement for a Drinking Water State Revolving Fund Loan
for the Kamole Weir Water Treatment Facility Clearwell Replacement. And the purpose
of Bill Number 48 of 2006 is to authorize the Mayor of the County of Maui to execute all
necessary intergovernmental agreements and documents with the State of Hawaii,
Department of Health for a Drinking Water safe, State Revolving Fund Loan. Members,
your Chair will also note that if you recall on February 24th of this year, the
Administration did transmit a Fiscal Year '06 Budget amendment for 10 million dollars
to be funded by this State Revolving Fund Loans. On March 3'd of this year, the Council
referred this matter to the Budget and Finance Committee under County Communication
Number 06-67. On March 15 th , the Mayor transmitted a proposed Fiscal Year 2007
Budget to the Council. And on March 22 nd of this year, the Fiscal Year '07 Budget
deliberations began. There was a request that was considered in the Fiscal Year '07
Budget session. And on May 26, the afpropriation was included in the final Fiscal Year
2007 Budget. Members, on August 7t ,just a couple of weeks ago, the Administration
transmitted a Fiscal Year '07 Budget amendment which increases the appropriation by
the 907,123 dollar amount, along with a loan authorization bill. And just to reiterate, on
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our August 14'\ 2006 Council meeting, Council did pass Bill Numbers 47 and 48 on first
reading and had the bills referred to this Committee for further discussion. Members,
before we go any further, we would like to provide an opportunity for public testimony.
We have one person signed up to testify... those of you signed up to testify, if you can,
please when your name is called, come to the podium, state your name for the record.
And if you do represent an organization, we'd like to know that information as well. And
we'll be providing you with a total of three minutes ... excuse me, a total of four minutes.
We'll give you three minutes, and then, at the three-minute mark, we'll give you an
additional minute to conclude your remarks. With that being said, we have at this point
one person signed up to testify. Mr. Hansen?
MR. HANSEN, FROM THE AUDIENCE: Can Tony go first?
CHAIR KANE: Sure. We have ... also Mister. .. Tony Fisher signing up to testify. So we will
acknowledge Mr. Fisher as signing up to testify and coming forward first. If-MR. FISHER, FROM THE AUDIENCE: I'm writing fast.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Yon can go ahead and finish that up after you're done, Mr. Fisher,
if that makes it more convenient. And if you can, please let us know what. . .item you're
gonna be testifying on, please. So maybe you can take a copy of the agenda with you.
Thank you.
MR. FISHER, FROM THE AUDIENCE: Good idea.
CHAIR KANE: If there's anybody who has a cell phone or a pager, if you can, please tum it to
the "off' or "silent" mode at this time so that we can avoid any unnecessary distractions
to this meeting. Good afternoon, Mr. Fisher.
. . .BEGIN PUBLIC TESTIMONY. ..

MR. FISHER: Good afternoon. I'm sorry to be late. This is on BF-92 .
. . . And I, and I just wauna make the opening statement of the fact that. .. COMET, as
you know, has worked for many years to work something out called a cap on taxes. And
having read this particular. .. document and so forth, my only comment is this is not a
cap, it's a ten-gallon hat. The 10 percent would result in a quadrupling of people's taxes
every 14 years. The 4 percent that COMET has proposed is a doubling in 18 years. So,
and I know we'll hear some discussion about the fact well, this isn't really what it's
intended to be, et cetera. I, I just wanna make one very quick comment about
the ... the ... other aspect of this particular point, which is the fact that COMET has been
collecting... signatures for some two months. We have 6,200 collected. That's not
enough. That's the bad news. The good news is Corporation Counsel and ... the County
Clerk has assured us that we can use those signatures for the 2008 election. And so this
is the first formal notification of the fact that we will continue the gathering process, and
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we'll now, this is not the end. This is the middle of that process. And finally just one
really quick comment I am ... absolutely, , ,gotta make this statement that this County
Council has been so , , ,
, , , uh, cordial about this entire thing, I know we disagree, I know there are different
points of view, But I wanna tell you something, that I have been, , ,you know, I, I watch
C-SP AN and I see people hollering and screaming at each other. And you, ladies and
gentlemen, have been absolutely wonderful. And" ,and I wish you all well in your
upcoming elections, You who have, ' ,who don't have people to run against, that's a
different issue, And I know, 1. , .I wish I had that problem, Anyway, it's been very
wonderful. And" ,Chairman Kane, I thank you, particularly for. , ,the way that this has
been conducted all the way along, Thank you, sir. That's all I got to say,
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, If-MR, FISHER: Any questions?
CHAIR KANE: --you can, please state your name for the record, Mr. Fisher.
MR, FISHER: I'm sorry, Tony Fisher. , ,South Maui,
CHAIR KANE: Thank you,
MR. FISHER: Thank you,
CHAIR KANE: Members, are there any questions for Mr. Fisher? Member Anderson?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Chair. Thank you for being here, Mr. Fisher.
You said that this, , ,10 percent cap will result in a quadrupling in, in ten years did you
say?
MR. FISHER: Fourteen years,
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Fourteen years, Can you explain that?
MR, FISHER: Well, if you take, , ,100,000 and in your first year you multiply 110, that
becomes 110, And then you multiply it the next year, it becomes 121. And when you do
that, it becomes 4, , .400,000 in 14 years,
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And so, , ,do you believe in the studies that you've made
so far, in our system and the way that taxes have, , ,been assessed and have actually
increased that it's reasonable to believe that, ,the 10 percent limit would be hit every
year?
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MR. FISHER: I don't know. I mean, that, again, is up to the Members of the County Council,
and obviously the Administration.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I'm talking-MR. FISHER: I'm just saying-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: --about assessments.
MR. FISHER: Uh ...
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Assessed valuations.
MR. FISHER: Mine have ... by a long shots [sic). So my taxes, my... my assessments have
gone up a lot in the years that I have been here. We feel that the number is too high.
And I'm speaking from a COMET standpoint as well as a personal standpoint.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And so what-MR. FISHER: I think the numbers that we presented were, were realistic and that the 10 percent
is too high.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And refresh my memory... because I know there was an
assessment cap and then a tax rate cap.
MR. FISHER: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So ...the assessment cap was at 4 percent?
MR. FISHER: It was at 4 percent or the cost of living and the consumer price index for the
preceding year as of October 1st, whichever is less. There was a letter to the Editor that
misstated that. And a 2 percent maximum--it could be zero on the tax rate, so it could be
as little as 3 percent if the CPI was at that and the maximum will be 6 percent.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And then, did you get anything in writing from Corp.
Counselor from the County Clerk's Office regarding the signatures being valid for the
next election cycle?
MR. FISHER: We have not to date. What I am going to do is to write them a letter and I will
make sure that the ... County Council has a copy of that as well, that confirms what we
agreed to in a meeting we had with...with those two people last week, week before
actually.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I would ask--
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MR. FISHER: No, it was last week.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I would ask them to send you a letter confirming what they
said to you. Because things change in two years and you wanna have that in writing so
that you know that those signatures are still valid.
MR. FISHER: I can put in my letter "please confirm this
reasonable ... and I will, I will do that.

III

writing".

That

IS . . . very

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Any further questions for Mr. Fisher? Member Johnson? Good
afternoon. The Chair recognizes Member Johnson to the ... (inaudible)-COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Thank you ... Mr. Fisher, with regard to, I guess, some of the
components of the measure that's before us, I know one of the components of COMET's
proposal. .. which basically was a rollback, do you believe that. .. you know, even with
the 10 percent cap that there should still be some type of an adjustment with regard to a
maximum tax if we adopt any part of this bill in terms of a rollback?
MR. FISHER: I think a rollback is ... probably a very good idea. But again, I think it needs to
be discussed and looked at where--this is not something we're going to do in November.
If it were being done in November, then I think what we proposed was exactly correct. I
think if it' s two years from now --and the way the County Charter is written, it allows the
five members of COMET who were in the ... document that we gave to the County
Council, to modify that as long as it is not terribly different. And we made one
modification, if you recall, where we withdrew the tax cap part of it and rolled, made the
rollback to two years. I think we need to take a look--we have decided to, to stay
completely quiet until after the November election ... primarily because I think
everybody's got other things on their mind and we would be, I think, just .. .it would be
stupid for us to come out and try to do that kind of thing at this point in time. So what
we're gonna try to do is to wait until after the election. We'll see what the new County
Council. .. decides to do and ... and I thank, particularly, Robert Carroll, Charmaine and,
and Councilman Kane ... because you will not be here .. .in, in ...December. And ... and
I, I. ..1 thank you for your, your help and assistant [sicl and disagreement, and as I
mentioned earlier, cordially . .. without having a, a fistfight. I talked to somebody this
morning. And I said if there's one great thing in the world that I think people need to do,
is to disagree without being so doggoned disagreeable.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: ... (laughter) . ..
MR. FISHER: And ...
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Thank, thank you, Mr. Fisher. And I'm sure we'll get into
the discussion about this particular item. Thank you very much.
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MR. FISHER: Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Is there any further questions for Mr. Fisher?
... The only question I have, I know, Mr. Fisher-MR. FISHER: Yes, sir?
CHAIR KANE: --when you were sitting with us at a previous Committee meeting discussing
the COMET proposal. .. you made a representation that. .. the numbers added up to
approximately 9 percent. Four percent for the assessment, the 2 percent for the rate, and I
believe you made an additional comment regarding up to a 3 percent adjustment that was
represented in the proposal, for a total of 9 percent. And that's something that's part of
the record.
MR. FISHER: Yes, and, and-CHAIR KANE: And the reason I ask that is because I'm trying to relate that to--ifyour proposal
was for 9 percent and this is a starting point, this is something that we're starting with, it,
it may end up something completely different or not end up at all, we don't know ... that
between 9 percent and 1 percent--

°

MR. FISHER: Was actually 8 and 9, but that's okay. Uh, the, the remaining 2 to 3 percent
comes from the fact that when you reassess a piece of property when it is sold, maybe the
assessment is 400,000, but it sells at a million, you immediately reassess to the higher
number. That will generate between 2 and 3 percent. That is the national average where
this has been done elsewhere. And so that's why I made the comment in answer
to ... Councilmember Anderson's question--that you don't need to do the 2 percent. .. tax
rate increase, perhaps because you may get enough out of the .. .increase in the valuation.
Now if the valuations start leveling off or perhaps going down ... then that 2 to 3 percent
will not be that high. Or it may be ... zero. But. .. 6 percent is really the maximum
amount. .. that will be by...the way that this is, the way that the County Council will go
and put this on the table in so far as budgeting is concerned, but when you get this other
2 to 3 percent, then that brings you to the 8 or 9 percent. It's never been 1 percent.

°

... But it, it is the 2 to 3 percent. Is that clarify that?
CHAIR KANE: Yeah, the, the representation that I was referring to is that you said there was
4 percent, 2 percent, and between 2 and 3 percent-MR. FISHER: Yes.
CHAIR KANE: --for a total of9 percent.
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MR. FISHER: Correct.
CHAIR KANE: And that was the representation. So I'm relating that 9 percent to the initial
proposal here on the hill of 10 percent and trying to understand your comments ahout
how this one is so out of whack and yet there's only a 1 percent difference hetween what
you're talking about in the proposal and this proposal. One percent difference.
MR. FISHER: In all fairness ...
CHAIR KANE: I'm just trying to understand.
MR. FISHER: ... I believe your 10 percent is not the same as our 4 percent. What you're
trying to do is to take those people who have had these enormous increases and cut the
top off of them. And ...my comment at the beginning about a cap and a lO-gallon hat
was ... facetious and humorous. And not, was not meant to be ...
. . . you know, really a... beating you up about this particular issue because I think what
you're saying is if. . .if your taxes have doubled--I'm sorry, if your assessments have
doubled, you put a cap of 10 percent on it. Some people's have gone down. Some
people's have stayed level. But you're saying make sure that people don't get c - : - too badly. And, and I am not .. .I don't tbink this is the right answer, but it is an
approach. And I am not sitting here saying, Councilmember Kane, this is the dumbest
thing I've ever heard of, blah, blah, blah, blah, blah.
CHAIR KANE: Oh, no, no, no.
MR. FISHER: Because it's not. It is, it is an approach. And ... I'm not wholly disagreeable. IfI
were sitting there, I would not vote for it because I think it's the wrong approach. But I
think it's a... for, for the five years, 5Y2 years that I have lived here, we have said you
need a cap. This is the first piece of legislation that has been generated inside the County
Council which in fact says, you're right, we need a cap. It's just that we're ... debating on
what that cap should be. So I. .. am very--I almost called you up and said "thank you",
but. . .I knew I was gonna come here today, albeit late. Uh ...
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Fisher.
MR. FISHER: ... (inaudible) . .. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Members, any further questions-MR. FISHER: Again, I thank all of you for your consideration over the last 3Yl years.
Particularly, you, Robert.
CHAIR KANE: Hearing none, thank you. And if you can finish your testimony sign-up sheet?
Thank you. Next person to testify is Tom Hansen.
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CHAIR KANE: ... Mr. Hansen, I believe, is signed up to testify on Item Number 92.
MR HANSEN: That's right. Good afternoon ...
. .. Dain Kane, Chairman, Council Members. Mr. Carroll, our retiring man who did a
wonderful job over the years, good luck to you, and God bless you. Mister. .. our, our
leader was not able to come because his wife in hospital in Honolulu .
. . . And we hope that they're well. And I'm sure you do, too. I'm not an expert on
taxation. And I'm just gonna give you an account of someone who circulated the petition
and talked to people and so forth, right. And the overwhelming response that I got was
that a taxation system where you assess property on the basis of what properties surround
it sell for, they felt unfair. And I notice now in the USA Today, there was a editorial there
where II states are looking at their taxation policy. And of course, you know, in
California, they had Proposition 13 and so forth. Now if you live in a place where
property values remain stable from generation to generation, there's no problem. But
here on Maui, where property valuations are enormously volative [sic}, well, then you
have to take a different look at it. And we have more real estate agents here on Maui than
we have coconut trees today. Plus ... you've got millions of tourists coming in here and
all of 'em wanna purchase the chunk of Maui. Right? So the possibility... this thing is,
can get out of hand in a hurry. And then if you, it's a bad law and if you tweak it, what
you end up with is a bad law that's been tweaked. You haven't solved the problem.
We've been tweaking the damned thing since I think about 9, in the 1970s, I think this
first came on. I was ... stopped by a number of people in Lahaina, and they said, Tom,
can you write a letter to The Maui News? And I says, what for? And they said, our taxes,
we can't afford our taxes anymore. And so I did. And I called up Charmaine's father.
And Hannibal said, you don't have to tell me about that, my mother's having the same
problem. So it's been going on for a long time and I think it has to ...have to be looked
at. I'm glad to hear that Dain has suggested a cap. I think that goes a way
toward ... solving some of the problem. I don't know, I don't know enough about it to
say whether it's too much, too little, or so forth. But then, last night when I picked up the
Maui Time, I was very disturbed. I don't know if you folks have seen that or not, but it
would appear that. .. the way we go about assessing taxes is not. .. either there's ... a lot
of. . .incompetence in how it's done or even something worth it. And maybe the Council
should seriously think about initiating an audit, an independent audit of the system
because if people get a feeling that it's not being done fairly--certain people are being
treated favorably and others are not--that can have a very negative impact on government.
Other than that, I don't have anything ... (laughter) . .. to say. I wanna wish, I agree with
Mr. Fisher--I think you all have done and excellent job, and I wish you all the best of
luck. Thank you very kindly.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Hansen. Members, are there any questions for our testifier?
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... Hearing none, thank you very much. Is there anybody else here in the Chamber that
has not testified that would like to? Now is your opportunity.
. . . Seeing nobody approach, Members, without objections we'll go ahead and close
testimony for this afternoon's meeting.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objection.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Thank you. Testimony is now closed .
. . .END OF PUBLIC TESTIMONY. ..
CHAIR KANE: Members, your Chair will direct you to Item Number BF-91 ... on the Kamo1e
Weir Water Treatment Facility Clearwell Replacement Project and Drinking Water State
Revolving Fund Loan item.
ITEM NO. 91:

AMENDING FY 2007 BUDGET (KAl"VlOLE WEIR WATER TREATMENT
FACILITY CLEARWELL REPLACEMENT PROJECT Al'W DRINKING WATER
STATE REVOLVING FUND LOAN) (Bill No. 47 (2006) and Bill No. 48 (2006»

CHAIR KANE: I will also note that we have in attendance this afternoon, our Water Director,
Mr. George Tengan; our Budget Director, Mr. Lloyd Ginoza; and from Corporation
Counsel, Mr. Kushi is available this afternoon to serve the Committee. Also, we have
Committee Staff available. Mr. Tengan, would you like to provide any opening remarks
and/or Mr. Ginoza, any opening remarks to this item?
MR. TENGAN: ... Thank you, Mr. Chair. First of all, I'd like to thank the County Council,
and especially the Chair of the Council and the Budget Chair for taking this matter. .. up
in a.. .in a flexible manner in that you're imparting on your normal procedures in, in the
handling of Budget amendments. And we, at the Department, truly appreeiate that. As
you know, this project is needed...to meet the ... the ... contact time for disinfection... at,
at the ...Kamole Water Treatment Plant. Other than that, I believe the Budget Chair [sic]
has some statements to make with regard to the project also and, and also with the Budget
amendment.
CHAIR KANE: ... Mr. Ginoza?
MR. GINOZA: Mr. Chair, thank you. Thank you, Members. Thank you for the opportunity to
discuss this proposed ordinances to amend the Fiscal Year 2007 Budget, and to authorize
the State Revolving Fund Loan for the Kamaole [sic] Weir project. Also, as,
with...Director. .. Tengan, I wish to thank you for expedite ... providing this expedited
process to accelerate the processing of this, these ordinances. As mentioned by
Budget Chair Kane, this project was approved in the Fiscal Year 2007 Budget for
10 million dollars funded by the State Revolving Fund Loans. The first request in our

- 10 -

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County ofMaui

August 29, 2006

ordinance request is to increase the appropriation by 907,000 ... 907,123 dollars, based on
additional loans that were made available from the State after their review of the bid.
This additional loan was based on the State's calculation of a design allowance--which I
believe is based on Federal guidelines--and a 10 percent contingency allowance. The
total loan amount was calculated beginning with the bid amount of 9,490,000 and adding
a design allowance of 468,123 dollars and a 10 percent contingency of 949,000, to come
up with a total revised loan of 10,907,123 dollars .
. . . The terms of the interim loan agreement provide that the loan will be payable over 20
years with interest at .15 percent per year and a loan fee based on 3.25 percent, for a total
loan cost of 3.4 percent. This is compared to 4.5 percent on the recent general obligation
bond issue that was held recently. In addition, there are no closing charges or costs
related to the SRF or the State Revolving Fund Loan. I believe the closing cost for the
recent issue was about 200,000 for about 29 million.
. . . The additional available loan will provide a source of funds, if needed, for
unexpected change orders and other contract overruns for the proj ect. However, since the
loan disbursements are limited to the cost approved by the State, the loan shall not exceed
the approved cost of the project or the 10,907,123 dollars, whichever is less. The second
request that we have provided is to authorize the Mayor of the County of Maui to enter
into a... enter into an intergovernmental agreement for a Drinking Water State Revolving
Fund Loan for the Kamaole [sic] project. And together with the Director and his staff,
we're available for any questions that you may have.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Members, before I open the floor, I'll just. .. provide just some
information. In your binder, you should have a ... a number of. . .letters. First, you have
a letter dated August 22TId __ and this is over and above the Bills 47 and 48, Members. You
have a letter dated August 22 nd from our Director of Water Supply, providing the, further
information estimates relating to the project. And that letter, I believe, is attached
to ... excuse me... oh, is located...right behind the original packet that's contained in the
August 23 rd letter. After that, you have the August 23 rd letter from the Director providing
the agreement for the State Revolving Fund Loan for the construction of drinking water
project, et cetera. You also have a letter dated August 24'h from the Director, providing a
worksheet from the State Department of Health, calculating ... the ... the estimated loan
amount of the 10,907,123 dollars. You also have a memo dated August 25, '06 from
your Committee Chair, requesting that Corp. Counsel consider revisions to Bill
Number 48 to make the body of the bill consistent with the title in reference to the
number of agreements authorized, and to include a reference to semi-aunualloan fees. In
addition, your Committee Chair required [sic] whether the revised bill can proceed to
second and final reading.
And then, Members, we received a memo dated
August 28'\ 2006 from Corporation Counsel, transmitting a revised bill and confirming
that said Bill Number 48 may proceed to second and final reading after taking a look at
the contents of the bill. With that, I'll go ahead and open up to the floor, to the
Vice-Chair, Mr. Hokama.
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VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman, thank you. My, my question ... for Mr. Tengan would be
on Page 2 of your August 22 nd transmittal to Chairman Kane of our Committee. Can you
just. .. give us some comment, please, on that middle paragraph re, regarding the 344-plus
thousand dollars that ...
· .. regarding the replacement fund that was used for design cost, please.
MR. TENGAN: Thank you, Mr. Chair. Yes, the 344,000 dollars was spent for. .. design of the
project. Based upon ... the loan... what's entitled to be financed through the loan, we
could recoup the 344,000 which was paid out of Department funds. And so we could
take the 344,000 dollars from the two, 468,000 dollars which is currently approved by the
DOH and put, put that money back into ... CIP funds.
· .. So it, it would be like reimbursing our CIP funds.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: ... Okay. Mister, Mr. Director, just to help ...help me ... understand
it better, what is the main advantage of doing it that way, please? Instead of using ...the
Department CIP funds ...what, what's the advantage to you and your Department to
borrow the money?
MR. TENGAN: Well, as you know ... you know, our construction funds ... or funds that are
available for CIP have been dwindling down over the years and this would give us an
additional 344,000 dollars that we could budget for other projects.
· .. We basically, if we ... receive the money from the State ... then basically the design
would, would have been funded with a loan rather than being ... rather than using the
Department's funds ... (end a/tape, start lB). .. budget an additional 344,000 dollars in
the future for CIP.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. And I can understand regarding the ... preferred interest rate
we getting from the Revolving Fund versus our normal obligation interest that we pay.
And again, my last question .. .I heard Director. ..Ginoza of Budget state, so let's say the
total project comes in at 10 million dollars.
· .. The loan to the County of Maui from the State Revolving Fund is, shall be only for
10 million dollars. The 900-plus-thousand dollars will be refer, returned back to the
Revolving Fund... and we have no obligation ...whatsoever to pay any type of charges or
fees or interest for that unused balance.
MR. GINOZA: That is correct. That is my understanding. And when you say "return", I
believe the 10... 10... you know, once the State approves, it's allocated to be 10,907,000.
And I gness the remaining balance would just be reallocated elsewhere. Because we
don't receive the money. It's, it's only an allocation within the State.
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VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, so the, the State would be able to reallocate it other projects it
deems qualified for the funds?
MR. GINOZA: Correct.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you very much for your response. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Member Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes, Mr. Ginoza, what would be the annualized carrying
charges and the repayment? I, I looked at your projections for how much money would
actually be expended, what it would be used for, but just so that we have a sense of what
we would be looking at for the Water Department repaying this. And would it come out
of the rate payer funds?
MR. GINOZA: Uh ... when you say "repayment", can you-COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Well, if you're borrowing 10 million dollars, is there any
plan to, at some point in time, repay ... annual debt service? What are we looking at in
terms of the annualized carrying charges and any principle that may be repaid?
MR. GINOZA: Okay. The way the State Revolving Fund repayment works is that the loan
itself is amortized based on one-half percent interest per year. So in reality what happens
is the amount loan payments that are allocated to principle is quite a bit more than the
normal general obligation bonds. But in addition to that, they add the, the loan fees. In
other words, instead of the, the loan fees together with the interest. .. being combined and
amortized over the loan period, it's separate. So the total loan fee for. .. for the first year,
for example...the first payment in, assuming a payment in December of. .. of '07, the
interest portion will be about 8,200. And this is a semi-annual payment.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Uh-huh.
MR. GINOZA: And the loan fee would be 177,000 .
. . . So it be, the ... principle interest. .. semi ... semi-annual fee, semi-annual amount
would be fixed at 283,900 dollars. And the flexible part would be the loan .. .loan fee
which is based on 1.625 percent of the outstanding balance at the end of the each
semi-monthly period. So it's, it's almost like .. .(laughter) . .. loan, loan amortized
amount plus the loan fee that's, that's gonna be due every... every six months.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay, but they would be paid at the same time, and then
over, I believe, is it a 20 year amortization-MR. GINOZA: Twenty-year loan, yeah.
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COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Twenty-year amortization period, they would be paid out of
income that's received from people either through their meter fees or ...
MR. GINOZA: Yes, out of the operating account.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Operating account? Okay. If you were to accelerate--let's
say that there were other monies that became available or you found at some point in time
that you had capital that would actually be able to accelerate the loan repayment and you
needed monies for other purposes or maybe ... to pay this off, what would be the
advantage to doing that. .. or is it just better if you just continue making these payments
and if other monies become available from the State Revolving Fund, then take out a
separate loan?
MR. GINOZA: I would think ... the condition that would make it preferable to repay the loans
would be if the ...the general interest rate in the economy becomes much lower than
3.4 percent. Then, yes, it's a consideration to repaying the loan and reducing, you know,
the, this debt-COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Dh-huh.
MR. GINOZA: --and try to refinance it with another debt. But if the conditions remain the same
where interest does not go below the 3.4 percent, it would be wise to continue the debt
and to fund more projects, you know ... normally with, with the monies that you would be
using to, to reduce the debt.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. Thank you very much.
CHAIR KANE: Any further questions for the Director or the ... any of the Directors?
Mr. Pontanilla?
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you, Chair. For the Director, in a letter dated
August the 7'\ it was noted that. .. when we opened the bid on April the 13 th , the low bid
was 9,490,000 dollars. And in the same time in all, it also note, was noted that a... a
contract change order may be required for modi fication to the interior coating system.
And such change order is expected to result in a reduction of the contract. Can you
explain that?
MR. TENGAN: ... Yes. Right now, the bid as or the contract as it stands is for 9.49 million
dollars. But we do have an item that we're considering for amend, for amending the
contract. And that's to ... use a different matcrial for the interior coating of the, of the
clearwell. And that should reduce the overall contract amount by, by the amount that you
just stated, that 200-and-some-odd-thousand dollars. So the net effect of the contract
would be, with that change ... or amendment would reduce the contract amount to about
9-point, 9.2 million dollars.

- 14 -

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

August 29, 2006

COUNCILMEMBER PONT ANILLA: So in regards-MR. TENGAN: But it shouldn't impact the overall. .. availability of funds for the total, total
project.
COUNCILMEMBER PONT ANILLA: Then, on the contingency, if we taking 10 percent, it
would be reduced also, at the same time?
MR. TENGAN: Urn ... that 10 percent that we have noted there is just. .. an estimate. It's not
gonna, I don't believe it's part of the contract. But it's an allowance that would help us to
manage the contract as ... you know, as unforeseen changes come up.
So the,
that. .. we're basically budgeting that amount right now for any change orders that might
come up.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Further questions? Member Mateo?
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Chairman, thank you very much. Mr. Tengan, then if the
project is with, with the pending reduction with that pending change order. . .if, if the cost
will come out to in the area of 9.2 million dollars, then can you tell me the urgency in
going after the 10.9 million dollars?
MR. TENGAN: ... Well, the urgency is basically...not the total cost of the project, but the, the
urgency is the risk of. .. the contractor. .. asking for a cost escalation due to the delay in
the ...notice to proceed on the project. Uh ...
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Then ifthe-MR. TENGAN: ... that's where the urgency is.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Then if the contractor submitted a bid for 9.4 and we're already
knowing that there will be a reduction in that bid total because of the pending
modification that will occur, is that bid still tangible? Is that still a viable bid?
MR. TENGAN: Yes, it's still a valid bid.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay. Thank you. Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Any further questions, Members, for. .. any of the Administrative
personnel? Member Anderson?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: ... Thank you, Chair.
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· .. I'm referencing a contract that was signed .. .I'm assuming it was signed, there's no
signature pages. But it is a... an Interim Agreement with the County of Maui ... for the
State Revolving Loan Fund for the construction of drink, Drinking Water Project, loan
from Drinking Water Treatment Revolving Loan Fund. This is ... Members, attached to
an August 23 fd , 2006 .. .letter from the Director.
CHAIR KANE: It's in our-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So-CHAIR KANE: --binder, Member-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Yes.
CHAIR KANE: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Uh ...
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: 23.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: ... August 23 fd , Members. Just previous to everything
· . .(laughter). .. that you mentioned, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Urn ... this is the Interim Agreement, and I'm sorry that
there is not a date on this, but ...
· .. there is an amount. And .. .if Mr. Tengan is familiar with this--I'm sure he is 'cause
his name is mentioned in the agreement ...
· .. the amount of this loan, for this very same thing that we're talking about today, was
for 6 million dollars ... with an additional ...
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: 900.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: . . . 963,440 dollars ... of Federal funds ... from an
appropriation account for. .. the same ... State Revolving Funds. And, and all these
monies, we talk about them as being "State Revolving", but they're all "Federal" monies
or pass-through monies from the Federal government. And they...require ... that
the ... applicant complete ... all Federal requirements, one of which is ...unless you got a
waiver, and that's what I'm ask you, Mr. Tengan. Is ... there is a requirement for
Environmental Impact Statement ... or Assessment.
And my two questions
are .. .initially, in regards to this contract. I know that this is an interim contract for
6 million dollars. And I'm assuming it, it happened back in 2005 because, Members,
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Exhibit B of this, which is at the end, has a project schedule and notice to proceed was
estimated to begin on ... or to happen on August 2005. Completion of construction was
estimated to be September of '06. So my question to you, Mr. Tengan, is ... and I, I'm
sorry, I wanna preface that with one more piece of information. This is from the Capital
Improvement Projects Implementation Report ... as of September 30 th , '05. And ... this
report breaks down all of the Capital Improvement Projects for the County. And in this
report, we have ... for the ... first quarter of 2006, as of September 5th , uh, sorry,
September 30 th , 'OS, we have an appropriation ... of 5 million dollars for the Kamaole
[sic} Treatment Plant Clearwell Replacement. And under the remarks, it says: design
95 percent complete, propose to ad ... advertise for construction bids in December 2005.
So I guess the logical question, then ... Mr. Tengan, is when this Interim Agreement was
signed, I guess you obviously felt that .. .
. . . the 5 million dollars would be sufficient, or at least 6 million. And so what happened
between then and now that this project is now a 10 million dollar project? Has there been
upgrades ... has the design changed?
MR. TENGAN: ... If I may, Mr. Chair, I, the only way I can respond to that would be that at
the time this Interim Agreement was entered into, that was the ... engineering estimate as
to what the bids would come in at. However, when we did advertise the proj ect for bids
and we opened bids, the bids came out to be 9.49 million dollars. As you know, the cost
of materials have increased substantially for some of the materials--such as concrete and
steel. .. of which... this, this project will use a lot of. The basic structure for the tank or
the reservoir will be of steel and concrete. And you know, we've seen tremendous
increases in cost for those two items, let alone other. . .increases in material cost. And
the, that's the only way I can respond to it.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And so you didn't go out for ...
. . . construction bids in December '05 ... or did you?
MR. TENGAN: Just,just a second while I confirm with staff.
NOTE:

Pause.

CHAIR KANE: ... And, Ms. Anderson, while they're coming down-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Sure.
CHAIR KANE: --I just wanted to, again, note that. .. we're discussing... and, and we'll, we'll
continue your line of questioning, but the question that we have before us is the
additional 900,000 dollars because we've already approved the 10 million.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I understand.
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CHAIR KANE: But for background, please proceed so we have a better understanding of the
project overalL
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Yeah, and you know, my concern is that this, this Interim
Agreement needs to be ... consistent, well, with what we're doing right now. We're
passing an ordinance, and I'd like to see ... that ... (sigh). .. what we're authorizing is
actually tied up in an agreement with the State.
CHAIR KANE: We could, perhaps, solicit comment from Corporation Counsel to that point?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Yeah, but I, I, I'd like to get an answer, first, on this-CHAIR KANE: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: --if I can.
MR. TENGAN: Yes, Mr. Chair, basically ...
. . . the reason .. .I guess why the cost is so way off is, or way different is that we had a
delay in the completion of the ... design phase. And so rather than going out to bid in
December of 'OS, we went out to bid ...
NOTE:

Pause.

MR. TENGAN: ... Well, it was in about January '06. However, I believe this estimate was
done sometime before that.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So in September '05 when it says the design was
95 percent complete, that extra 5 percent ...
. . . was the factor, the, the remaining 5 percent of the design was the factor in causing the
cost to go up or-MR. TENGAN: Mr. Chair-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: --1-MR. TENGAN: --you know, I, I don't really know why...the, the reasons underlying the cost
increase as far as the specific materials. Urn ... so to push me for an answer on that, you
know, I really don't have an answer for that.
COUNC1LMEMBER ANDERSON: Well, that's fair enough, Mr. Tengan. That's all you have
to say. It doesn't prevent me from asking the question.
MR. GINOZA: Mr. Chair? Ifl could?
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CHAIR KANE: Mr. Ginoza?
MR, GINOZA: ,,' If I could just explain part of the process of the SRF Loan? And it may
clarify some of the, , ,you know, some of the reasons for the Interim Agreement and the
inconsistencies in the amount. Basically, as I understand the, the process, you know, the,
the State has a list of projects that are available for the SRF Loans, And what happens is
that the, , ,the Department submits an application for the loan, and at this point, there's no
bidding, there's, , ,there's nothing involved in terms of contractors, But an application is
made with the State to see if the, the project qualifies for the loan and to have the State
review the project in generaL And what happens is that the State reviews the project and
they, , ,using the estimate from the Department as to the project cost, they develop the
interim loan agreement. And the purpose of the interim loan agreement is so the fund,
funds can be allocated by the State so that they can, you know, allocate it to this project
and to establish the interest rate that the State is willing to, to charge for the loan,
, , , And also what it does is it gives the Department some confirming amount that,
confirming factor that a loan is available for funding, So at that point. , ,the, the project is
put out to bid and what I, I assume in this circumstance, the initial cost was at 6 million
dollars,
so
the
interim
loan
was
developed,
And
for
your
information, , ,Council Anderson, this, this agreement was signed as of
January 15(\ 'OS, , ,on Page 1. Um-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Oh, on Page 1 , , ,(laughter). , ,
MR. GINOZA: Yeah,
, , , But, but at that point, the project is put out to bid, And what I believed happened was
that when they went out to bid, then it came up with the 9.4 million, So there is a
progression in terms of the 6 million, , ,(laughter), , , to the 9 million where the 6 million
may have been, , ,just. , just too low, , ,(laughter), , , So, and, and we did, , ,try to have
the State amend this, , .interim loan agreement to the current balance, And their response
was they have never amended an interim agreement, and they are willing to proceed with
the original 6 million and, and when the final loan agreement is done, to, to make it up to
the appropriate loan balance, So in the, in the process of, , ,
, , , certifying the funds, you know, Finance would have to depend on the interim loan
agreement together with the commitment letter that the State provided, you know, to, to
certify the funds for the contract.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So" ,thank you for that, Mr. Ginoza, I really appreciate
that explanation, So just to make sure I'm clear on this, that this interim agreement will
stand in that the, , ,commitment letter, is that what you said, that you--
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MR. GINOZA:
dollars.

Well, there's a letter from the State that. .. that identifies the 10.9 million

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And so that's enough to,
agreement as far as the amount?

In

essence ... amend this

MR. GINOZA: It's not going to amelld the agreement, but the interim agreement will be at
6 million, but there's another agreement that will ... follow this-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I see.
MR. GINOZA: --and that's a filial loan agreement. And that requires all of the final
documentation, like the contracts, this ordinance that approves the loan, and, and the like.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And that will have the 9 million.
MR. GINOZA: That will have the 10.9-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: 10.9.
MR. GINOZA: --10.9 million.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay. Great. Thank you very much for that explanation.
So .. .I would be interested in knowing, then, if on Page 27 it requires that the County
conduct an environmental reVIeW that meets the Environmental Protection
Agency's ... the NEPA, which is Federal, and also HRS 343. So--and that's our State
Environmental Impact Law. So my question to the Director is have you guys done an
Environmental Impact Statement. .. or have you gotten a waiver or what's the status?
MR. TENGAN: Mr. Chair, if! may, I'd like to call on Larry Winter, he's the project engineer
for the design portion of the project.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Sir, if you can, please identify yourselffor the record. Thank you.
MR. WINTER: Larry Winter... Larry Winter, Department of Water Supply Engineer.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Winter.
MR. WINTER: Yes, we did do an Environmental Assessment for this project. And it was done
with the SRF Loan requirements in mind. So it had the Federal requirements in
the ... Environmental Assessment.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And, and do you know when that was done, when it was
finalized or ...
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... I mean, I'm assuming you had to do it before you went out to bid, right, after you did
the design.
MR. WINTER: Yes, we did.
NOTE:

Silellce.

MR. WINTER: ... Draft EA was published in the bulletin on June 23 fd , '05.
published in the bulletin on September 23 rd , '05.

Final EA

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And so, Mr. Winter, is the project, then, substantially the
same as it was back in '05?
MR. WINTER: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And then, I just have one other question, Mr. Chair.
We're, we're taking this ... tank from 300,000 gallons to 3 million. And the way it was
explained to me... or to all of us is that this is just to increase the contact time. And I
understand from one of the meetings that we had in my Committee, that we could not
expect to get any additional source availability out of this tank because .. .I think
Mr. Tengan explained that as soon as the 3 million gallons is in the tank, then it's
distributed, and you start filling it up again. Is that a correct understanding, Mr. Tengan?
MR. TENGAN: Yes, the underlying reason for the...the size of the tank is to establish an
appropriate contact time for the disinfectant.
As far as using it as storage
for. .. distribution and for. .. fire flows ... you know, it's not gonna do anything for the
distribution systems except that to make water available at the ... distribution tank sites.
So we're not really adding source because ...the capacity at the plant remains the
same ...the amount of water that we can process to, through the plant--which is the
determining factor. . .in figuring out what's available for inter. . .in... in terms of
source.. .it's the ability to treat water at the plant and not the size ofthe storage tank.
. . . But the underlying reason for the, the ... reservoir or the tank is to establish an
appropriate ... contact time for the disinfectant.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay. Thank you for that, Mr. Tengan. So that was a, that
clarifies for me. And just to make sure that I understand it, the, the sole purpose of this is
to meet surface water treatment rule ... to expand the contact time. We're not gonna be
expanding availability of water or anything else from this expansion of the tank.
Correct?
MR. TENGAN: Mr. Chair. .. although it's not gonna provide us with additional source .. .in
terms of capacity upon completion of the project, it will help us in the future when we
upgrade the ... the capacity of the Kamole Treatment Plant because with the existing or
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with the .. .3 million gallon tank, then we could increase the capacity at the plant and still
meet the contact time ... utilizing chlorine as our. .. disinfectant.
COUNCILMEMBER A1'-iTIERSON: And how much, I mean you, you must have this figured
out. You've gone from 300,000 gallon to 3 million. So how much, how much could you
expand using this 3 million gallon tank, Mr. Tengan?
MR. TENGAN: Based on the information I have, you know, right now we have an agreement
with EMI where, whereby we could draw up to 12 million gallons per day out of the, out
of the ditch and treat that water to send Upcountry. But we haven't been able to do that
because of the capacity of the plant. Right now, maximum capacity, I believe, is about
7 million gallons per day. So following completion of the ... of the tank, then we would
be working on plans to upgrade the capacity of the plant and take it lip to the 12 million
gallons per day ...to provide more water Upcountry.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And then the, the clear water tank, or c1earwell tank would
provide for that extra up to 12 million?
MR. TENGAN: Right. It should be of adequate size for the ...
. . . for the ... contact time requirement.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay. Thank you very much. Thank you, Chair.
And before I recognize anybody
CHAIR KANE:
Thank YOll, Member Anderson.
else ... although not as part of the ... the item, Members ... as I referenced in the opening
remarks, under County Communication 06-67, which was the original request for a
consideration for an '06 Budget amendment, there is a pretty clear explanation as to the
content of your discussion, Member Anderson, discussing the 3 million gallon cJearwell
Kamole Water Treatment Facility and the rationale for the larger tank. I have a copy of
that. If you'd like, Members, we can have copies made of this so you can have a clear
understanding of, again, this discussion that we just had. So that's available to us,
Members. Any further questions for the Administration, before the Chair provides a
recommendation?
NOTE:

Silence.

CHAIR KANE: ... Hearing none, Members, the Chair's recommendation is to move forward
and pass out of Committee without revisions, Bill Numbers 47 of 2006 and Bill
Number 48 of2006.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: So moved.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Second.
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CHAIR KANE: Okay, it's been moved and seconded. Members, any discussion?
· .. Mr. Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chainnan, just one question.
· .. Are, you are, I, I am assuming you're referencing the bills that. .. you have requested
revised from Corporation Counsel. That is what is moving forward.
CHAIR KANE: That is correct.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Chainnan.
CHAIR KANE: Yeah, the reo .. the revised bills.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Members, in discussion, if there's no further discussion ... your Chair was going
to put forward, and so I put this on the table and ... as your Chair, I cannot make an
amendment, but I will put forward a consideration ... and it's up to the body to decide
whether or not they would approve of this consideration. Your Chair has inquired with
Corporation Counsel and has asked for feedback on providing a proviso ... that would
read: provided that the, that a report be submitted to the Council regarding total
expenditures over 10 million dollars. As you recall, the bid came in at 9.49 ...there was a
small amount that was allowed for additional. .. and then, now we're looking at an
additional 923,000 dollars. So your Chair wanted to provide this body an opportunity
that anything over 10... 10 million dollars, that a report be provided to this Committee or
to the Council to, if there's any expenditure over the actually 10 million dollars that we
originally approved in '07 Budget. Now, that's something I put on the table for
discussion or if there's ... a Member. . .I'll recognize the Vice-Chair of the Committee. If
that's something that you folks wanna discuss, then we'll put it on the table as a... as an
amendment to this and have it put into, as a proviso, on one of the ordinances. And I
believe this would go on to ...
· .. Bill Number 48, I'm sorry, 47. Staff?
MR. T AGUCHI: Yes.
CHAIR KANE: Yeah, 47. Excuse me. So, the request would be to consider, Members, an
amendment ... (end of tape, start 2A) . .. And that amendment would be to have a proviso
that would read: provided that a report be submitted to the Council regarding total
expenditures over 10 million dollars.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Move to amend--
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So moved ... (laughter) . .. Second.
CHAIR KANE: It's been moved and seconded, Members--Hokama and ... I'll say "Anderson".
Yeah-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: .. .(laughter). ..
CHAIR KANE: ... {laughter} . .. thank you. Okay, so that's on the table. So we'll open for
discussion. I'll recognize the maker. Member Hokama, any discussion?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman, 1. . .I'm also assuming that you have checked with
Corporation Counsel. .. that this would in no way be considered a substantive revision to
the ordinance proposal that would require ... returning back to first reading?
CHAIR KANE: That is correct, Members. If you will note ... on the last document, stapled
document on the back of this Item Number 91, you'll have a memo dated
August 28 th , 2006 from Mr. Edward Kushi Jr., Corporation Counsel, acknowledging that
we further confirm that said Bill Number 48--excuse me .. .is it 47 or 48'1 I'm sorry.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: 48.
CHAIR KANE: 48, yeah?
MR. TAGUCHI: Chair Kane, it's 48 ... for the revisions that were requested prior to this
meeting. And 47 was through a verbal discussion with Corporation Counsel-CHAIR KANE: Thank you.
MR. TAGUCHI: --prior to this meeting.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. So we do not have a document. So at this time, if I can ask for
comment? I, we did have a verbal discussion with Corporation Counsel, but at this point,
we will ask .. .if we have a issue of going back to first reading. And I don't know if
Mr. Kushi is prepared or if Mr. Moto, who I see in the audience, would be prepared to
respond to this proviso creating a back to first reading situation. Mr. Kushi, are you
available for this response?
MR. KUSHI: Mr. Chair. .. 1, 1. .. 1 don't recall talking to you about this one. So ...who did you
speak to?
CHAIR KANE: Yeah, I didn't. And I had Staff speak to--Mr. Taguchi, go ahead.
MR. TAGUCHI: We were in communication with Corporation Counsel Moto.
CHAIR KANE: Okay--
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MR. KUSHI: Mr. Moto?
CHAIR KANE: Yes.
MR. KUSHI: Oh, okay-CHAIR KANE: And Mr. Moto is here-MR. KUSHI: --you better talk to him then.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: ... {laughter} . ..
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: .. .{laughter} . ..
CHAIR KANE: Thank you for that question, Mr. Hokama.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: ... {laughter} . ..
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Winter.
NOTE:

Pause.

MR. MOTO: ... Mr. Chairman, I spoke with Mr. Taguchi, and ...no, I, I did not believe that the
change would be significant enough to require another first reading.
CHAIR KANE: Mr. Hokama, you have the floor.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:
Chairman, that, I. .. that, for me, would ...was my main
concern... since... you know, it's very unclear what is a substantive change. And you
know, I. .. I'm more comfortable hearing Corporation Counsel Moto give us
a... definitive... opinion--although verbal--it's part of the record and the Council can also
always refer back to ... the minutes of this meeting whereby it is on record that the
opinion of our attorney, Mr. Moto, this afternoon has confirming a nonsubstantive
change ...that would require... referring back to a first reading. So that, that was my
main concern, Chairman. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Further discussion? Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah, thank you, Mr. Chairman.
report--are we looking at a yearly report, a quarterly report?

Just a clarity on the

CHAIR KANE: No, the trigger would be, Mr. Molina, ifthere is an expenditure over and above
the 10 million dollars that we originally approved for the Fiscal Year '07 Budget. That,
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and, and after discussion with the ... Water Director, they have no problem with
providing us a report of that type of expenditure-COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: So just, just based on the amount?
CHAIR KANE: That's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay.
CHAIR KANE: That's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Yes? Member Johnson, followed by Member Anderson. I'm sorry-COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Urn ...
CHAIR KANE: --what was that? Member Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Should there be any delay in receipt of a report or let's say
the expenditures do exceed 10 million dollars and ... for some reason there is no report
received, does that in any way impair. .. or affect the .. .I guess the allocations that are
being made? And does it impact the agreement between the County and the State
Revolving Fund?
CHAIR KANE: The intent is not to have any type of impact other than to provide this body with
a report ofthe expenditure over 10 million dollars. That's-COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay.
CHAIR KANE: --the intent of the request, or of the proviso.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. So there would be no ... you know, if a report isn't
received, there's no ramification.
CHAIR KANE: The report is gonna come after the expenditure is made. In other words, if they
go over the 10 million, then all they're required to do is provide us with-COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: So-CHAIR KANE: --that report. And I've also discussed with the Budget Director, excuse me, the
Water Director, and they have no problem giving us status reports any time that we make
that request-COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay.
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CHAIR KANE: --in writing.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. I'm sorry, Member Hokama?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman, just. .. may I have a, just a short ... temporary, you know,
very short recess to confer with you, please?
CHAIR KANE: Sure. Subject to the call of the Chair, Members, we will call a very brief recess
... (gavel) . .. Recess.
RECESS:

2:41 p.m.

RECONVENE:

2:43 p.m.

CHAIR KANE: .. .(gavel) . .. We're back in order. Thank you for that brief recess, Members.
We have on the floor an amendment to Bill Number 47, adding the proviso as stated on
record. Are the, are there any further requests for discussion on this item?
... Hearing none, all in favor say "aye".
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR KANE: Opposed? Let the record show it's unanimous.
VOTE:

AYES:

Councilmembers Anderson, Carroll, Johnson, Mateo, Molina,
Pontanilla, Tavares, Vice-Chair Hokama, and Chair Kane.

NOES:

None.

ABSTAIN:

None.

ABSENT:

None.

EXC.:

None.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION:

APPROVE amendment to main motion.

CHAIR KANE: We're back to the main motion as amended. And to be clear, Members, Bill
Number 47 is now revised with the proviso, and Bill Number 48, which is part of this
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Item Number 91, is the revised bill that deals with the consistency of the body to the title.
Okay, Members? Any further discussion on these items? Member Anderson?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: ... Have we voted for both bills? Are we gonna ...
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: No, not, the motion .. .(inaudible due to interruption)-CHAIR KANE: We're on the-COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Motion was ... (inaudible due to interruption)-CHAIR KANE: The motion include both 47 and-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay.
CHAIR KANE: --48 revised.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay.
CHAIR KANE: As amended now.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Oh, we just voted on the amendment?
CHAIR KANE: On-COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: ... (inaudible). ..
CHAIR KANE: --Item Number, yeah, Bill Number 47-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: ... (laughter) . ..
CHAIR KANE: --there was a, there was a proviso added that we just voted on. So we're back
to the main motion that includes both bills.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Oh, okay. Then I have no discussion. Thank you, Chair
... (laughter) . ..
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Thank you. Any further discussion, Members?
... Hearing none, all in favor say "aye".
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Aye.
CHAIR KANE: Opposed? Let the record show it's unanimous.
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VOTE:

AYES:

Councilmembers Anderson, Carroll, Johnson, Mateo, Molina,
Pontanilla, Tavares, Vice-Chair Hokama, and Chair Kane.

NOES:

None.

ABSTAIN:

None.

ABSENT:

None.

EXC.:

None.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION:

Recommending SECOND AND FINAL READING of Bill No. 47
(2006), as revised, and Bill No. 48 (2006), as revised.

CHAIR KANE: Thank you very much, Members. These bills will move back on to the full
Council floor for second and final reading. Yes, Member Anderson, before we move on,
you have-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Yeah, I just had one comment.
CHAIR KANE: Go ahead.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And, not actually "comment", I had one quick question for
Mr. Tengan. Now that you have ...the bid has been less and you have a contractor, has
he given you any expectation as to when this might be finalized, this project?
· .. How many, are we looking at 12 months ... are we looking at 24 months?
· .. Just kind of an idea.
MR. TENGAN: ... Mr. Chair, the response to that would be one year from the notice to
proceed. As soon as the contract documents are executed, we can ... give the contractor
his notice to proceed, which should be shortly--assuming that. .. the ordinance passes
second reading.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay. Thank you very much.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Any final questions or comments before we move on?
· .. Hearing none, Mr. Tengan, thank you very much.
MR. TENGAN: Mr. Chair, if I may, I'd like to thank the Committee and the Council Members
for taking action on this item.
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CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Thank you for your comments. Mr. Winter, thank you, again, for
your presence .
. . . Members .. .let's go ahead and take our mid-break for the afternoon. It's quarter to 3,
Members. Do you need 10 or 15 minutes?
... Okay, 10 minutes is fine?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: ... {laughter} . ..
CHAIR KANE: Members, let's work for a recess until 2:55, and we will reconvene at that time.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: .. .{inaudible} . ..
CHAIR KANE: Okay, Committee stands in recess .. . (gavel) . ..

RECESS:

2:46p.m.

RECONVENE:

3:04p.m.

CHAIR KANE: ... (gavel) . .. Committee Members, we are reconvened. Your Chair would like
to direct your attention to Budget Item 92, maximum real property tax for Homeowner
and Improved Residential properties.

ITEM NO. 92:

REAL PROPERTY TAX RELIEF FOR HOMEOWNERS AND
IMPROVED RESIDENTIAL PROPERTY OWNERS (MAX TAX
PROPOSALS) (C.c. No. 06-205)

CHAIR KANE:
Members, the Committee is in receipt of County Communication
Number 06-205 from Councilmember Kane, transmitting two draft bills for, to provide
real property tax relief to Homeowners and Improved Residential property owners.
Second, we have a eorrespondence dated August 22TId, '06, from your Chair transmitting
the following. First. .. a proposed bill entitled: a bill for an ordinance to amend
Chapter 3.48, Maui County Code, relating to real property tax relief for Homeowners.
The purpose of the proposed bill, Members, is to establish a maximum tax amount on
110 percent of the real property tax due in the preceding tax year for qualified, qualifying
Homeowners. And second, a proposed bill entitled: a bill for an ordinance to amend
Chapter 3.48 ... Maui County Code, relating to real property tax relief for Improved
Residential property owners. The purpose of the proposed bill is to establish a maximum
tax amount of, on 110 percent of the real property tax due in the preceding tax year for
qualifying Improved Residential property owners. Members ...
NOTE:

Pause.
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CHAIR KANE: ... Excuse me, Members. The Chair would, wanted to make note that. . .in
previous discussions, specific when we had the discussions with COMET ... there's, there
was discussion or at least an interest by the Committee as a whole to consider ...
· . . discussion and potential proposals for. .. caps via ordinance versus via Charter
amendment. As your Chair. .. the effort here was to merely initiate that discussion in
ordinance fonn. What you have before you are merely starting points. The Chair has no
intention today to try and push this out of this Committee, and that today provides us the
first of, I believe, many opportunities to have a discussion and to, as a body, see if we
have consensus in moving forward on ... whether or not we can support some type of cap
in any particular. .. property tax classification. Specifically, we have Homeowner
classification, as well as Improved Residential classification. We have with us this
afternoon, our Director of Finance, Mr. Kalbert Young; and with him is Mr. Scott Teruya
who works in the Division of Property Tax. And so at this point, Members, the Chair
would like to provide--although this has been initiated by Council and one of the
Members of the Council, I would like to provide any remarks to be given by our Finance
Director ifhe's prepared to do so. Mr. Young, good afternoon.
MR. YOUNG: ... Good afternoon, Mr. Chair and Members.
· .. The Department was consulted through communication on this measure from the
office of the Chair for the Budget and Finance Committee. And the Department did
respond, after some consultation with the Department, I'm sorry, with the Division of
Real Property Tax, through a communication dated August 24'\ 2006 to the Committee,
in which we did review ... very preliminarily a, the effect of such a cap on the two
classifications--Homeowners and Improved Residential--should the cap had been in
placed .. .in place during the last fiscal year or, or the budget construction for the current
fiscal year. And in summation, the effect of such a cap would have resulted in
a... overall revenue decrease of about 2.5 percent. .. keeping in mind that the total real
property tax revenue for the Fiscal Year is projected to about 191 million. The overall
revenue effect was an estimated reduction of about 4.8 million.
· .. The Administration also offers a number of comments in regards to the operational
practicality of implementing such an, such an ordinance and cap for those two
classifications. And they are listed on the rear of the communication. We've listed out
about six different items. However, please keep in mind that we are still assessing the
overall affect of such an implementation that may require ... a little bit more functionality
in the Real Property Tax Division. And I will leave open the possibility that it may
require new functionalities that do not currently exist--either in the way of our computer
system or in the way of personnel. With me today is Mr. Scott Teruya. He is currently
the Acting Real Property Tax Administrator for the Real Property Tax Division, and he is
available to answer any technical questions that you may have in the area of real property
tax or assessments related to this ordinance.
And as well as myself, I'm
available ... available for questions. Thank you, Mr. Chair.
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CHAIR KANE: Okay. Thank you, Director. Members, before I open the floor, just two notes so
that we are clear. Both the proposals, or both bills--one for Homeowner as well as one
for Improved Residential--ifyou'll note in the Section B of each of 'em, that this is for a
two-year time period. Okay? And the intent was based on previous discussions--and
we've had many discussions and it's been pretty broad discussions, so the Chair
attempted to grab things from the various components of those discussions. First, this
would provide a time frame to allow a sitting Council body... a two-year time frame to
which to have additional discussion to see if there's anything they can do to provide
additional tax--whether it's reform or adjustment, this provides a time frame and in the
meantime, we have this type of ordinance that would be considered to be put in place.
Second, the point your Chair would like to make is that the question of why "10 percent".
And the reason is because we've had ... extensive discussions and we've heard from
various Members of this body, some asking for consideration of or discussing favorably
higher than 10 percent as well as Members discussing lower than 10 percent. So because
of that, the Chair figured we gotta have a starting point somewhere. We tried to get
someplace as close to the middle of the two sides that were discussed. And so, again, to
be clear, starting point discussion. No intent to push out today, but to merely open up the
discussion to get the ball rolling and we have on record for future discussions to proceed.
With that, Members, thank your for your... the Chair's opening remarks. And I'll open
the floor. Member Hokama?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman .. . (cleared throat) . .. excuse me. Chairman, thank you
very much. First of all, my appreciation to you to present this consideration for us to
begin the important discussion relating to property taxation in the County of Maui.
· .. I, I think one of the comments that I would like to share--and I, and I hope, and I
appreciate Mr. Teruya and Mr. Young presence here this afternoon--is that as we discuss
this consideration, I, I would hope that. .. you can help us ...
· .. by making us aware of the continuous changing big picture that the County faces.
And that is ... what we discussed earlier in another Committee this morning regarding
GASB-45, the need to pay our liabilities in the retirement health funds; the ability for us
to take care our ongoing overall debt which is about. . .let's say round numbers,
250 million dollars plus or minus 5 million, let's say; the need for us to, again, know of
our future large investment considerations, and that is the replacement of the 30- to
45-year-old infrastructure needs, basically in the sewer program; the impacts of Federal
regulations regarding solid waste management and EPA requirements; regarding
landfills, and of course, the ever changing ... global economy that impacts us with cost of
construction material which we are currently facing with the changes from a State
mandate of April 1Sf implementation of thc ethanol gasoline ...
· .. hybrid, B-lO, I believe it's called, whereby was to help our agricultural industry. We
did not delay implementation of the program, so here we are now importing two, instead
of one resource for this State and for our County. And, again, we are under the global
pressures of ethanol pricing globally and how it's affected all of us at the pump. And
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interesting enough, again, Mr. Chainuan, in relation that if the gas cap was imposed still
yet, it could be a potential 25 cents a gallon benefit. And so I ask that, you know, we
keep these things in mind and your Department in mind, Mr. Young, because .. .it's very
easy to be very narrow as we look at property tax and isolate everything else out of it.
And yet, knowing that the next sitting Councils is gonna have to deal--and I would hope
the only option is not to borrow more money . .. because eventually paying off that
borrowed ... (laughter). .. money is going to be ... a very difficult situation that's gonna
impact services. And I would forecast would impact, in this County, the nonprofit sector
tremendously because of the lack of cash revenue for this County to put forward in those
services that this County has deemed part of our quality of life requirements. So, stating
that, Mr. Chainuan, thank you ... to help phrase ...
. . . I, I would ask the Department this afternoon if. .. one, currently... do you consider
our system able to make this type of adjustments currently if we should consider moving
forward with, with some sort of program such as this? You know, we've invested
millions into a independent system to allow us flexibility. So, again, I just need to know,
are, are we capable if we wanna move forward, Mr. Director? Or what would it take for
us to move forward within your Division?
MR. YOUNG: Yes, Mr. Hokama, the Department is still assessing what would be all the
different levels of intricacies it would take to implement the eap from an operational
perspective. This review includes taking a look at the current computer system that runs
all of the annual processing, the certification numbers that come, that come before you, as
well as all the calculations that are involved. Right now, at the very least, we, we can say
that to impose such a cap would involve a level of reconfiguration for functionality that
currently does not exist. So there may be some operational requirements in the way of
programming. On the human capital side ...we, we're still looking at if there are any
different issues related to either enforcement or compliance review for implementing this
cap. And that includes for our staff. .. to the taxpayer as well as our staff to existing
systems by way of audit, et cetera. That is a little bit more .. .it's still a moving target
because until we see what is the depth and scope of the ordinance that the Council
implements, we won't be able to lock down in tenus of that. .. a detenuination in tenus of
that level of resource. So I, I would say that. . .in my opinion, the Department and the
Division is operationally capable of implementing anything that the Council passes. But
just for, my request to the Council is to just, to keep in mind that some of it may require a
little bit more fine-tuning and a little bit more implementation of functions that currently
do, don't exist. So whatever time that is, that can be afforded, the Department would be
appreciated.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. And thank you. And I, and I ask that because .. .I think our
Chainuan, Committee Chainuan was very cognizant of the issue--since you and I just
recently returned from a trip where we talked to our, the County's Bond Counsel, the
County's Bond Underwriter, as well as the three rating agencies--Moody's, Fitch's, and
Standard and Poor [sic}.
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... Because I, I know the Chainnan's structure whereby he has specific language in his
ordinance proposal that this would not be in any way prohibiting the County to take care
of its tax regarding ad valorem tax, which is property tax, to payoff its, it's debt.
And ... and so, you know, my question is ... do you believe that it would be clear to our
rating agencies, those who would underwrite our borrowing, future borrowing, that this
does not in any way prohibit our ability to repay our obligations?
MR. YOUNG: Yes, Mr. Hokama, in, in reviewing this, these two ordinance, I did consult with
our Bond Underwriters in tenns of the effect of such an ordinance on the
County's ... debt policy or dept. .. fiscal structure. And in communication with the
underwriters, they do confinn that this measure, unlike the COMET measure which this
Council and Committee reviewed is far more .. flexible in tenns of the County's fiscal
structure ... for various reasons. One of which is that the specific clauses that these
measures would not in any way impact or infringe upon the County's ability to repay its
debt obligation. Also the fact that these ordinances are for a limited time. And lastly,
that these, that these ordinances only effect two of the ten property classifications ... and
that these two property classifications are not the majority sections for real property tax
revenues. And this is largely because of the fact, to the Members' memory, that real
property tax revenue in this current Fiscal Year Budget accounts for over 45 percent of
overall County revenue from operations. So the impact of this ordinance or any cap, for
that matter, in the real property tax area, is ... warrants strong consideration on our. .. on
our fiscal side. One caveat to the Bond Underwriters is that they did recommend that if
Council did approve either of these ordinances or any similar changes to real property
tax, that the bond rating agencies should be advised of such adjustments. But they did
not offer any opinion as to the County's ... the County's rating or future ratings.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:
. . . And you would say whether it's our current Bond
Underwriter. .. or another bond underwriter, you would feel confident that the comments
would be quite consistent?
MR. YOUNG: ... Uh, Mr. Hokama, I, I. . .I don't think I would ... be comfortable in speaking
for what other underwriters would say. But. .. UBS has been the County's Underwriter
for. .. at least my tenure and as far back as I can ever recall. So their comments and
opinions carry a lot of weight with myself personally. So .. .r, I think they, they bring a
lot of level of expertise. So that would be a safe assumption, but I wouldn't characterize
or, or care to venture for other underwriters.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: I think that's a ...
. . . very responsible .. .(laughter) . .. response you gave. And I can appreciate your, your
caution, Mr. Director. Uh ...
. . . But I would ask you that if this Committee feels that it would be very helpful to
hear. .. are you able to make arrangements at another meeting that the Chainnan
may... wish to, to schedule to allow the Underwriter to be present for the Committee to
- 34 -

BUDGET AND

FINAl~CE

COMMITTEE MINUTES

Council of the County of Maui

August 29, 2006

ask direct questions? Do you think, is that a ... viable option? 'Cause I think it might be
helpful to hear it specific from the Underwriter, those who put their name onto the bonds
and, and ensure the County that. .. with the last issuance, you know, close to 30 million
dollars ... (laughter) . .. that it's gonna be ... sold and that the County will have the
proceeds to do its necessary projects?
MR. YOUNG: Well, I would say that the, when this Council and body was considering the
COMET proposal, the Underwriters did have such a strong ... comment or opinion as to
that prospect that they did offer their presence or their availability when the Council
considered it, should the Council desire their presence. So I don't have, I would not have
a problem in offering or asking for their. .. presence if the Council so desired it. And I, I
would suspect that if the Council allowed them to either. .. be present either by
phone-- 'cause I know the Council has done so previously--either through teleconference
or through their personal physical attendance, I, I'm sure that could be arranged. Please
be ... be aware that the Underwriters ...their offices are, their closest office is in L.A. or
in San Francisco. So it would require us to ...have them fly in for that day.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. I appreciate that comment. .. to the Committee this afternoon.
Mr. Chairman, I ...
. . . I conclude this, this round of questioning. I do have other questions, but. . .I'm happy
to relinquish the floor at this time. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Hokama. Mr. Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeab, thank you, Mr. Chairman. Good afternoon, Mr. Young,
Mr. Teruya. Earlier, we heard from Mr. Fisher, commenting on this proposal, saying that
it could have a quadrupling effect. I guess I can only guess with regards to assessments
after the two years are over. .. assuming this measure does pass some day, if, if and when
it does. Can you give comment on what Mr. Fisher said? Do you concur. .. this could
have some type of quadrupling effect or impact the way properties are assessed--at least
in the Improved Residential and Homeowners?
MR. YOUNG: Well, my understanding of this ordinance is that is does nothing for assessments
or tax rates. It's purely... at the tax bill side, so, of the equation. So Mr. Fisher's
comments are accurate if you assume that tax bills were allowed to increase every year
by 10 percent. In four. .. approximately 14.7 years, you would see a quadrupling effect of
tax bills. However, that. ..
. . . that has not occurred . . .(laughter) . .. in the County of Maui primarily because the
Council has reduced rates when, when it's been afforded the opportunity and, and
increased rates on other occasions when it's required, when it is required to. I would say
property assessed values, now, maybe over a shorter, you know, over any extended
period of time has shown a level of increase. But on any given period may also show a
decrease from property to property. So Mr. Fisher's comments, I think were only related
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to the tax bill side of the equation. And he is accurate in that if the assumption is that,
that we would see tax bills increasing ... (end of tape, start 2B). .. He did point out that
there's a good number of examples this current tax year where Homeowners are seeing
their tax bills decrease .
. . . So ... you know, if, if this ordinance was in, was put into effect and allowed to occur
for next year. . .if you went back five years, you actually may see some people paying
less than a 10 percent increase year over year because there was a decrease for a number
of homeowners over, from last, from this year to last year.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. And another question, Mr. Chainnan. With regards to
your letter, your August 24th response letter to the Committee Chair, it mentioned that
4,356 property owners under the Improved Residential category would benefit from this
10 percent gap. What percentage of. .. the total number of improved residential
properties are, is this? I mean, I don't know if you have that info now. I can get a
response later.
And I guess the same with the Homeowners.
There's,
2,668 ... homeowners would benefit.
MR. YOUNG: Yes, certainly, Mr. Molina. I just so happen to have a copy of a matrix that was
provided at the time of certification before the Council, when we were deliberating the
budget. At the time, the estimated count for properties in the Improved Residential
classification was 9,879 units. So according to this, when we ran the review ... of those
9,879 units, approximately 4,356 units would be, would benefit from the cap or have
some impact from the cap. And that represents about 44 percent.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay.
MR. YOUNG: Similarly, for Homeowners ... there, at the same date that reported, there was
about 23,764 units .. .in the Homeowner category, of which on a preliminary of this
ordinance, about 2,668 parcels would benefit, would have benefited from the cap. And
that represents about 11 percent.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Thank you. Thank you, Mr. Chainnan.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Member Molina. Further questions? Member Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes, I'm trying to kind of, I guess .. . (laughter). .. get a
sense because there's several different ways that your tax bill can go up. One is from the
rate adjustment that the Council makes. Another way would be for the real property
assessment. And then, of course, the other way would be if we lowered the exemptions
or certain things were not available in tenns of tax reductions on the real property tax bill.
But. .. I guess, Mr. Chair, because this is a proposal that's combined from some of the
suggestions that have been made, my question would be for those individuals that we
often, you know .. . (laughter) . .. fall ... found falling into this "renter" category--where
this is the Homeowner and the Improved Residential, would that. . .in the Improved
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Residential category, would that also then potentially help those individuals who are
renting from other people right now or would this not be intended to impact them?
CHAIR KANE: The Improved Residential property bill would help people who are renting from
people who have multiple units .
. . . It does not cover the Apartment category, though.

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Uh-huh.
CHAIR KANE: So that is something that we could--and, again, this is a starting point. So we
could, as an example, if we were to continue with this trend and .. .I guess, recognize the
policy of this body to provide relief to homeowners as well as renters, then we would be
able to, the Chair would be able to move forward an additional proposal that would
include the Apartment category.
. . . So to answer your question, this one does benefit people who rent from landlords-COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Right.
CHAIR KANE: --who have multiple properties.
Residential category.

And that would fall into the Improved

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. And with regard to, I guess, the .. .I'm just gonna give
a practical or let's say a scenario. Because I've been going through this on other issues
with Mr. Young and he was kind enough to meet with me yesterday on another question
that I had. But the way that I understand right now is that when you get your tax bill, it's
given out in two separate billings, but it basically tracks the TMK. And is that correct,
Mr. Young?
MR. YOUNG: Correct, Ms. Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: So when you apply for the Homeowner exemption, that is
tracking, directly tied to that TMK. So if, for example, you sell that home to another
person who may be using it for rental, may be using it for some other purpose, that still is
going to give them that advantage of having, let's say if you apply this reduction, they
would be capped at that rate. Is that correct--the person that's buying the property, not
the person who's selling it?
MR. YOUNG: The, when the tax bills are sent out in ...March, oh, I'm sorry, when the tax bills
are sent out in July, they represent a payment that is due in August of that same calendar
year, as well as in February of the next calendar year. So as I understand your
question .. .if someone who had a Homeowner's exemption in place on property, let's say
for. . .in, in July, on July 31 st, 2006, their tax bill would be established. If they
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subsequently sold that property at some point after July 31 st, 2006, the person who buyed
it, who, who bought it ... (laughter) . ..
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: ... (inaudible).
MR. YOUNG: ... would still be responsible for paying whatever remaining property tax was on
it for that year--either the August payment or the February payment. So if that person
who purchased it was not of the same classification, was not a Homeowner, did not
intend to have it a Homeowner, they would still be paying that Homeowner rate.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Uh-huh.
MR. YOUNG: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: And so the person that ostensibly is, maybe, in need of a
Homeowner reduction because of the fact that they're in a category that they could
benefit from that 10 percent cap--Iet's say they buy a new house. And that doesn't, that's
in a category that's, or, or let's say they buy a property and it's in a category that doesn't
have that exemption, they would not get that benefit. Is that correct?
MR. YOUNG: That, that's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay.
MR. YOUNG: Let-COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: So ...
MR. YOUNG: And, and as it relates to this ordinance now, the, the following, the subsequent
year after the purchase, though, if the, the, the, they would not be, they would not benefit
from the cap-COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Uh-huh.
MR. YOUNG: --because the homeowner was not in place, it's not the same homeowner or the
property classification was previously Homeowner and is now Improved Residential or
vice versa. They would not benefit from the cap, the 10 percent cap from the... reflective
of the previous year.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. And, and I, then, Mr. Chair, based on Mr. Young's
description, I guess what my question would be is that because we're largely tying this to
homeowner relief or some kind of benefit, tying it directly to the people--and particularly
a lot of local ... (laughter) . .. people that could really use this .. .because it tracks with
the TMK as opposed to following with the person . ..
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· .. if somebody were to, let's say, purchase a property.. .let's say they buy the same
property that has the Homeowner's exemption and they buy it for 2 million dollars. But
currently, I guess, the assessed valuation is only, maybe, a million dollars
· . .(laughter) . .. on that property... what would you envision having ... you know, that,
that Homeowner exemption tracks with the property ... what would end up happening
now, in your mind as to that cap on that particular rate? Because what I'm concerned
about is if I look at a Homeowner .. .(laughter) . .. property or somebody that had that
Homeowner exemption and you've got the 10 percent cap but you have a new basis,
would you envision, then, that this would not be applicable? Or would it be applicable
because the Homeowner exemption had applied to that particular TMK? If you follow
what I'm saying ... (laughter) . ..
· .. So in other words, ifit's tracking the property or if it's tracking the person... and let's
say the valuation of that property was substantially more. Would that particular TMK
still get a 10 percent cap?
NOTE:

Very long silence.

MR. YOUNG: ... I'm sorry, Mr. Chair, are you waiting for me to respond?
... Oh-CHAIR KANE: Yeah-MR. YOUNG: Okay-CHAIR KANE: --if you are prepared-MR. YOUNG: --I thought-CHAIR KANE: --to respond.
MR. YOUNG: I'm sorry, I thought the question was directed-COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: 1t-MR. YOUNG: --at you, Mr. Chair.
COUNC1LMEMBER JOHNSON: It was directed to the-MR. YOUNG: I'm sorry.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: --Chair.
MR. YOUNG: Oh--
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COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: But-CHAIR KANE: Oh, I'm sorry. I thought you were-COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: ... (laughter) . ..
CHAIR KANE: --questioning the Director. So-COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: No, I said based on his response-CHAIR KANE: Oh.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: --what would your thought be as to how the scenario would
go in terms of the applicability of the 10 percent cap. If the cap or if the way that the
Homeowner's exemption tracks now is with the TMK, but then there's an increase in the
assessed valuation--which would, of course, trigger an increase, more than likely, in the
overall tax rate--how would you envision this new basis? Or would there be a totally new
basis? Or haven't we gotten that far yet in .. .(laughtel). .. I guess, fleshing out the
rules?
CHAIR KANE: The intent of--and because we are talking about the Homeowner ...
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Uh-huh.
CHAIR KANE: ... the intent of this, in your Chair's opinion, is to ... as we've discussed over
time, the protection of the ... homeowner who doesn't intend to sell. So I know the
discussion is revolved around a "buy", a "sell", somebody else coming in, somebody else
going out. The intent of this bill is to protect the homeowner who doesn't intend to
sell. .. and that they continue to receive some sort of benefit that provides them the
stability so they know where they're gonna be the next time around, if they have to pay at
least the max. If there's a buy and sell issue ... then they will not, then they will not be
protected by the cap. And I believe that's the intent of the bill--that they are not
protected by that. And I think that's--and I may be wrong, and so I'll ask for assistance
or clarification from Staff because ... we got great assistance from Staff to get this drawn
up as clear as we could. That. . .in Section B ... a property owner who qualifies for home
exemption with respects to payments due in a tax year and who qualified for a home
exemption for the same property in the preceding tax year shall not be required to pay
more real property tax on the property than the maximum amount computed. So
that. .. provides the, the defining or the parameters of the, what the bill's intent is. If
there's a buy and sell, then they're taken out of those parameters and they are not subject
to the cap. And-COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah--
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CHAIR KANE: --that's the intent.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: And, and 1, and I do follow that. I guess my concern is that
because what Mr. Young is saying, is that basically the homeowner's exemption or it
attaches to the actual TMK and it doesn't track, currently, with that owner. That's where
I'm trying to figure in my mind, well, okay, given that that's the way the homeowner's
exemption is applied, how in the real world ... (laughter) . .. do we get where we wanna
go and give the benefit to the individuals who need it? Because let's say that, let's say
they even bought a property that was lower in value than what they currently had.
They're gonna come with a period of time where they have no ... they won't be able, I
guess, until the following tax year to file for the homeowner exemption. So are you
saying at that point in time, at the point in time in which they file for it. .. they would then
get a 10 percent cap on whatever the valuation was that was attached to that new
property? Or is it based on the old property that they just sold?
CHAIR KANE: ... I'll respond by-COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: ... (laughter) . ..
CHAIR KANE: --answering the way you asked. And that was are, are we that far ahead yet.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah ... (laughter) . ..
CHAIR KANE: And my response would be "no".
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay.
CHAIR KANE: We're not that far ahead yet, and I think the intent of this bill in particular with
respects to Homeowner is not attempting to reach out that far. It's intended to, during a
period, a time period, to protect this particular classification from having in excess of
10 percent, in this case, the increases of their property tax payment until this body or a
future sitting body can come forward with a, a long term, more viable solution to
property taxes and how it's, how it's ... how it's done. So that is ... that's the intent.
Now, and it's not go beyond that at this point. And I believe that that discussion will be
very relevant in the ensuing two years. Say, let's, let's say this does go forward--whether
it's 10 percent, 2 percent or 20 percent, whatever it ends up being. But if we do
implement a cap via ordinance and we move forward, I believe the comments that you
have are very relevant to discussing the broader scope of whether we call it reform or-COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Uh-huh.
CHAIR KANE: --refinement or adjustment. That's, I think, where your discussion will be very
relevant in, you know, formulating what this body can agree to in, in moving forward.
Because those are ... because we have a certification point where we have to, in order for
us to set a budget. .. we cannot. .. we can't deviate from that without posing some risk on
- 41 -

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

August 29, 2006

our part or a con ... compromising our ability to be fiscally responsible in running the
County. We need to have a point where at, on December 31 5 " this is when we're finished
everything, and then from that point forward to April 19'\ that's when we come up with a
certified tax roll, providing for the appeal process, et cetera.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Right-CHAIR KANE: So-COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: So, so if I understand what you're saying, basically, this
would track as long as the people own their same property.
CHAIR KANE: That is correct.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: And they would have no relief whatsoever if there was a sale
that was transacted in the interim.
CHAIR KANE: Their relief would arrive two years later. But remember-COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: That sunset.
CHAIR KANE: --this is only met for two years. And so, again, it's not meant to protect the
person who's looking at buying or selling. It's meant to protect the homeowner and, also
if we're talking about the Improved Residential--which I think there's more work on that
one in particular. But the Homeowner exemption, or the Homeowner classification is
meant to protect the homeowner who doesn't intend to buy or sell.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Yeah. Thank you. Member Anderson, followed by Member Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:
clarification.

Thank you, Chair.

I just have a quick question for

CHAIR KANE: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Urn, I think it was in response to a question from
Ms. Johnson regarding...whatever it was .. .(laughtel). .. And you said that. .. the
Improved Residential would only apply for people who had multiple properties.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Could you ex ... clarify that for me 'cause I don't see how
that is reflected in the bill ... unless ...
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CHAIR KANE: Let us define what Improved Residential is, first. I think that needs to be clear.
And I don't know if you'd like to ... to provide us accuracy--Mr. Teruya, we'll give you
your. .. your ... getting your feet wet in the realm of the Council Chambers. Good
afternoon. If you can introduce yourself, please, sir.
MR. TERUYA: Thank you, Chair Kane. Scott Teruya, Acting Real Property Administrator.
Improved Residential, generally follows a classification of land which is urban
properties ... R-I, R-2, R-3. Also, those that are under an acre in size would follow
Improved Residential.
... If you have large acreage, we would normally classify those as an Unimproved
Residential. So Improved Residential are generally under an acre of urban land.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: That is not occupied by a homeowner.
MR. TERUYA: Correct. Whether you rent it, vacant. .. vacant 6,000 square-feet land
Improved Residential. Yeah.

IS

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And so you said that it would apply to those people who
had multiple properties. And so I don't understand that.
CHAIR KANE: Then let me rephrase. The intent is that if a... owner or a landlord--let's use
"landlord" because Improved Residential, the intent is for. .. providing stability for a
renter. Because we're not trying to just reach Homeowner in this casco
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Right.
CHAIR KANE: The attempt is-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Right. Right.
CHAIR KANE: --to reach a rentcr. Uh ...what we don't have in front of us is to protect the
renter of an apartment. But what we do have is a person who rents a home who is an
R-l, R-2, R-3 zoning class ... zoning area which would be if I'm the landlord and I
have ...two houses on my property and--my house and a cottage, as an example. And I
rent the cottage. Is that, would be that, would that be ... Mr. Teruya, an example or can
you provide us maybe-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: That's on the same parcel.
CHAIR KANE: --with an example?
MR. TERUYA: Uh--
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CHAIR KANE: Or a different property--one person only, multiple properties and they have
houses on them and they're renting these houses out. .. the intent is those would fall into
an Improved Residential classification. And the intent is to try and reach towards those
people renting in those types of areas.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: But I don't see anything in here that, that, that. . .narrows
it to only those people who have multiple properties. That's what you said. That's why
I'm confused. 1 mean, maybe ... you didn't mean to use that word, and maybe you
probably thought. . .I don't know what you thought ... {laughter} . .. but ...
CHAIR KANE: I'll rephrase. Let me say this-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So this-CHAIR KANE: --there's a lot-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: --this .. .{inaudible} . ..
CHAIR KANE: --of work here on the Improved Residential component because we're missing
Apartment, and I think there's a lot of work that needs to get done on that part.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Right.
CHAIR KANE: And so 1, I'll come back to my safe harbor and say there's a lot of work ahead
in this area. It's very complex and there's a lot of areas which I think if we ask the
correct questions, Mr. Teruya will ... will share with us and enlighten us on how we
would be able to capture, if you will, everybody who rents. Because you can have
rentals in Agricultural designations, you can have rentals in Business designation or
Commercial designations. I mean it's, it reaches out really far. So I think we're gonna
have a lot of work ahead of us--either this body and/or the next sitting body with respects
to providing rental people with relief. The Homeowner one, I think, is a lot simpler. .. for
us-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So then, just to clarify-CHAIR KANE: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: --if ...
. . . if somebody owns just one piece of property that is in Improved Residential, this
would still apply to them, correct?
CHAIR KANE: I believe it would. Yes.
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay. That's what I needed to know ... because there are a
lot of people, Mr. Chair, who live on the mainland, who don't consider Maui their
primary residence and they may have, maybe, a vacation condo here ... that they use
when they come, but they also have investment property that they rent out. And ... you
know, one of those people rents to me. And-CHAIR KANE: It's a long-term rental?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Yeah.
CHAIR KANE: Y cah. Not short-term vacation rental-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: No, no, no.
CHAIR KANE: Long-term rental.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Long term rental.
CHAIR KANE: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: It's a... you know, it's a ... (laughter) . .. I don't know
what, it's Rural, I guess. But ...
. . . so that would apply to anybody that has Improved Residential. Correct?
CHAIR KANE: That's the intent.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: And that's why we're asking for feedback in this initial round from our Finance
Department, and specifically the Tax Division to help us be clear on the, on the
definitions of what we're attempting to do. And then, they can provide us information
to ...massage this, if you will, or shape it so that we are able to reach our desired intent.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay. Thanks.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Member Tavares?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yeah, just following those lines .. .I sort of gather that. .. they
wanted to answer that question about the cottage on the property. So, do you have an
answer for that? If someone lives in the main house, they have a cottage that they rent,
how is that cottage treated?
MR. TERUYA: If you are, if you have the primary residence--like in Kahului, like you have a
house and a cottage-- 45 -
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COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Uh-huh.
MR. TERUYA: --you live in the primary, the main house, you have a homeowner exemption,
the entire parcel is classified as Homeowner.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: So it's for the entire parcel?
MR. TERUYA: Yes. Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay. My other question would be ...
. . . if we are trying to focus on the renters--which I hope is what we're trying to do
here ...
CHAIR KANE: That's the intent.
COUNCILMEMBER T AVARES: ... can we, is it possible to have a tax category that is for
rentals, long-term rentals only, regardless of where it is?
... Just-UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Possibly.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: --'cause isn't a, a homeowner of an ilpartment. .. considered
a "Homeowner"? If you own an apartment and you live there, you get homeowner's
exemption, right?
MR. TERUYA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: So in one sense, we have that. .. existing, but can we .. .is it
possible to put in, in a classification of renters?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Sub-PITT.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Or, maybe we can call it Affordable Rentals.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: ... Since-MR. YOUNG: Ms.-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: --when?
MR. YOUNG: Ms. Tavares, maybe I could, ifI, you don't mind--
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COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: ... (laughter) . ..
MR. YOUNG: --my, answer it this way, is that. .. the, the Council could choose to increase or
decrease the number of property classifications in whatever guise or realm-COUNCILMEMBER TAV ARES: Uh-huh.
MR. YOUNG: --that the Council decides to define. However, from an operation standpoint, the
Real Property Tax Division currently, right now, has no way of ascertaining...rentals-COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Uh-huh.
MR. YOUNG: --properties being rented. So .. .if, if there was a requirement for the Division to
somehow evaluate that a property is in a "rental" category-COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Uh-huh.
MR. YOUNG: --that would be a, quite a significant increase in human capital resources that,
that-COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Uh-huh.
MR. YOUNG: --we would require. Mr. Teruya could probably speak to, if you wanted to know
the, the full intricacies of how cumbersome that would be to enforce-COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Uh-huh.
MR. YOUNG: --Mr. Teruya would probably be the more ... appropriate person to respond there.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: But technically speaking, the computer system could take it.
It's a matter of input.
MR. YOUNG: It, it. .. yes-COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Tracking.
MR. YOUNG: --once it's in there, it, it'll, it'll be in there, just like any other classification. But
the ... the resource component that I mentioned is purely on, like, the ... the verification
side.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Right. Right.
MR. YOUNG: Yeah.
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COUNCILMEMBER T AVARES: Yeah. Okay. 'Cause Mr. Chairman, I, I, you know, I would
like to see us proceed in that direction because there is a lot of. .. there are a lot of
Unimproved Residential that I don't think we want to include in this. And there are a lot
of rentals that we don't wanna include in this either. If somebody is renting someplace
for 5,000 or 6,000 dollars a month, it's not the group that we're trying to help. Just as the
Homeowner is not the group we're trying to, to help that's on the, you know,
multi-million dollar area. And that's why I think the exemptions are really the way to
look at protecting our, our homeowners who need the most help. So I would, I would ask
us to look as we're, as we're doing this, to look at the possibility of forming a category
for affordable rentals. And you know, we have from HUD ... and I just dug this up
'cause I was working on the housing policy thing, but we have from HUD, you know, all
these guidelines about rentals adjusted for Hana, Molokai, Maui, Lanai. And perhaps
somewhere in there, and it might be a nightmare to get these things in, but it might also
provide the incentive for people to open up their rentals to more affordable where, where
it seems like 50 percent of people needing hOllsing want rentals ... according to the 2003
study. So if we can work something out that way, I think we can target the group that we
would like to target and provide the relief that's needed there. Because I know all of us
who are renting are gonna see an increase in our rents the next time our lease comes
around because the assessments have gone up so high. And there has been, really, no
relief for the Improved Residential or even Apartment zoned ... units. So I would, I
would ask that we kind of take a look at that, too. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: No, thank you for your comments. Member. .. Pontanilla?
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you, Chair. You know, I was looking at. .. also
taking a look at our Section 8 program in regards to providing some relief for those
homeowners or, you know, on the Improved home ... Residential area to give some tax
relief to those people that rent out to Section 8. And if we can do that, you know, it
would make more monies available for more people to be on the Section 8 program. So,
I, I'm looking forward to more discussion on that.
CHAIR KANE: Great. Thank you. Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Chairman. Mr. Young, one question relating to
the second page of your letter. If I could just encapsulate it, I guess the first two bullet
points, you mentioned that a determination should be made as it relates to changes in
property--as in size and use, along with improvements and additions to properties and
property transfers. Can you offer us any ... thing for this Committee to consider to
address these concerns ... at this time?
MR. YOUNG: Urn ...
. . . I would, I would prefer at this time not to offer any suggestions in terms of how the
Council could ... address this, but more my comments--to mention it in this
correspondence was for the Council to have deliberation so that it would provide the Real
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Property Tax Division a idea in terms of the direction and intent for how we should
handle improvements that are gonna... that are going to occur on properties that may not
change hands or classifications during the period of this cap, but how that, how did the
Council want or envision handling improvements. And the example that's mentioned
here--since the televised public will probably not be able to see this is--the example as
such where ... how ... the ordinances .. .I'll just read it. The ordinances do, do not present
direction as to determine how improvements and/or building additions or deletions that
may occur on properties during the period of the cap are to be handled. And there also
should be some determination in handling overall changes in property, such as ... change
in property size or use--for example, either through consolidation or subdivision, the
increase or decrease in agricultural use, et cetera. The example, the specific example
would be if you have a situation where ... during the course of the cap years someone
adds an addition to their home that substantially improves their property or if they happen
to build an ohana unit, or maybe they may be building their main unit.
... Is it the intent of the ordinance to allow for the cap to take effect. .. without any
consideration for new value being added onto the property.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Hmmm ... okay. I can see this will be a work in progress. So
I guess ... basically you're suggesting that we, I guess, include some type of language to
address these concerns in the current bill.
MR. YOUNG: Yes, Mr. Molina. And the reason why I ask for the Council's assistance and
guidance on this area is that. .. right now there's two ways to handle it. Right? Either it,
either these improvements ... can, can be .. .looked the other way and just included under
the cap, which would be the easiest operationally for us .
. . . But it would probably be, maybe some would say, for lack of a better word ... unfair,
let's say ... (laughter) . ..
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Uh-huh.
MR. YOUNG: The other option would be for, if the Council was to ask the Department to
separately track improvements. And, and that would be an operational, again, an
operational consideration that would require significant more levels of resources.
Because we currently don't. .. value and then track values separately-COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Db-huh.
MR. YOUNG: --on a single property.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: So this option B, you, you're looking at, well, the Council
would be looking at providing you additional funding for positions ... (inaudible) . ..
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MR. YOUNG: Well, we're still ascertaining what is the level of resources that would be
required ... (end of tape, start 3A) . .. that we would need additional funding. That is a
possibility. I leave open that possibility.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Uh-huh.
MR. YOUNG: But just for your, just for your knowledge that, if we decide to go that route, it
will require a different level of resources.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah. Okay. Thauk you. Thank you, Chainnau.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Mr. Mateo, you had any questions in this final, uh, this first round?
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Not, not a question, Chainnan. I'd like to just follow-up on
Member Tavares' comments regarding the need for us to address those who rent. I, I
think, I think the last number of months, especially, we have really focused on providing
relief to the homeowner. And I, I think the area that we really missed out on is
addressing those who rent out their units. And I think the focus for us at this point is, is
to now take a closer look. Because in order for us to provide the kind of relief and to
maintain the number of homes that, that are being rented out to, to our people is to
provide that incentive for them to continue the process. Otherwise, we gonna lose these
availables to TVRs aud the like. So I think in, in consideration of how do we continue to
provide the additional relief, we gotta look at it as the incentive that, that we need to
create in order to maintain these ... rental units that we so desperately need. And perhaps
this is the vehicle to address that need. And as we take a look at. .. at, at a, I guess at a
policy that is evolving at this particular point, something like this just helps to reinforce
the, the need. So I, I see this as just another tool in the box, as they say, to, to meet
everybody's needs. So I would be real interested in taking a look at. .. you know,
focusing in on how do we help to provide additional incentives to keep homes, you know,
continue to be affordable in this County. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Oh, no, thank you for your comments. And before I recognize anybody else,
aud that being the first round complete ... the only question I would have is ifwe . .. take
off of Member Tavares' and the comments of Mr. Mateo regarding, because we have a
homeowner exemption, so it doesn't matter if they're in apartment or someplace else, but
a homeowner exemption .. .if we were to create a classification of, say, a rental
classification or an affordable rental, to be more specific, would... from the, from the
application side, would that be...having... a declaration between a landlord and a
renter. .. as being part of that vehicle to establish a classification for renters, or
specifically affordable rentals? Or an affordable rental classification aud then to
detennine that or define that, then we would need to have some mechanism of,
of. .. verification. So you would have a declaration signed by a renter and a rentee.
MR. TERUYA: Are you talking about--I'm sorry, Chainnau.
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CHAIR KANE: Go ahead, please, Mr. Teruya.
MR. TERUYA: Are you talking about something that's recorded at the Bureau or just written on
paper?
CHAIR KANE: Urn ...
MR. TERUYA: Like an application form?
CHAIR KANE:
Yeah, something that would hold ... you know, the renter and the
rentee ... accountable-MR. TERUYA: With this-CHAIR KANE: --for their declaration. So if it is a notarized or if it is something at the Bureau
of Conveyances, whatever would be the most practical yet. .. tool that we can use to come
back to do an enforcement ... you know have ... enforcement capacity, if you will. What
can you share with us, or what insight can you share to help us track ... or, or, or refine
this concept of having a separate classification for affordable rentals and how we can
make that work on your side as far as the application?
MR. TERUYA: Chair Kane, let me first answer one port, one point that I have. Currently,
classification ofland is based on the actual highest and best use .
. . . Ifwe're gonna change this ... adding another classification ...
... uh ...

. . . it would almost be like .. .like a Special Use Permit. Like bed and breakfasts apply
for a special use, and that, therefore we can categorize them into something else. But
currently the classification of land is best on its high .. .is based on its highest and best
use, which is ultimately predicated by zoning.
CHAIR KANE: Uh-huh.
MR. TERUYA: Yeah. So ...
CHAIR KANE: So before you go any further, would we be able to .. .like we have a homeowner
exemption-MR. TERUYA: 1-CHAIR KANE: --where they in, are in multiple zoning ... aren't they in multiple zoning
categories? The homeowner, in other words, they, they reach across more than one, they,
they're not injust R-l Residential, but they're in Apartment, they're in a condo-- 51 -
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VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Rural.
CHAIR KANE: --in a Rural, they're in an Ag. I mean there, so is there, can we track that, can
we have a parallel classification that reaches across to renters and still have the ability to,
to oversee it and enforce?
MR. TERUYA: I'm not sure if I have the correct answer for your question, but. .. it could be
also administered like child care exemption right now, where you have to apply on an
annual basis .
. . . And then, therefore, you can either--maybe not give another classification, but have it
as an exemption.
COUNCILMEMBER ~~ Exemption. Yeah.
CHAIR KANE: Very good.
MR. YOUNG: Mister. .. Mr. Chair?
CHAIR KANE: Yes? Go ahead, Director.
MR. YOUNG: I, I think to further. .. expound on what Mr. Teruya is saying, is that it sounds
like the discussion is heading in the way... where I could answer that, yes, if, if you did
create some form comparable to that of like a homeowner's exemption and have it be
instead applied for affordable rentals or renters, it could be done. I mean, we currently do
it for homeowners exemption. The issues that I would raise would be in the area of
verification and enforcement. 'Cause that's what it always comes down to.
CHAIR KANE: Yes.
MR. YOUNG: And currently for the homeowner's exemption .. .I know this Committee has
discussed at a number of times the depth and ...
. . . the real efficacy of the current verification process for a homeowner's exemption. In
fact, I believe this Committee has before it an ordinance to revise Maui County Code to
add a higher level of verification for homeowner's exemption.
CHAIR KANE: Yes.
MR. YOUNG: And then, on the enforcement side, they're currently, the, the Real Property Tax
Division has very limited resources to enforce homeowner's exemption, Circuit
Breaker. .. application, the child care credit that Mr. Teruya brings up, but as well as the,
all the other exemptions, Ag use, et cetera, you kuow, that the, that the Division is asked
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to do. So, can it be done? Yes, I, I say yes, we can do anything that the Council advises
or requires us to do. It's just operation, putting it into practice will be the real challenge.
CHAIR KANE: No, and it's, I think, by all the Members of this Committee ... respected, as far
as we wanna make sure that what we are intending to do is actually able to get applied.
Yeah? I, I know we started first round. So ... as a follow-up, Member Tavares, I'll, I'll
recognize you to follow-up on these comments. Go ahead, please.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Oh, I canjust do the second round. So, 1-CHAIR KANE: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: --I'll wait.
CHAIR KANE: That's fine. Member Hokama, I'll recognize you.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman, thank you.
· .. It's great to see the ... dynamics this afternoon, Mr. Chairman.. I think you can see
that there's a lot of. .. dedicated concern of, of trying to approach ... this subject matter
that you've brought forward for this Committee this afternoon.
· .. Couple of things that I would just like to, regarding the Homeowner's proposed
ordinance, Mr. Chairman. And I take this back from my experience ...
· .. during my Castle and Cooke days. That maybe we might want to consider reversing
what was, what we call the "buy-back provision" ... and maybe have a "no-sell
provision" ...that for the period of the time that we ... should we enact this ordinance
forward, that if property owners are willing to sign a "no-sell provision", that you get the
benefit of. .. of a maximum cap on taxation. Because again, I, I believe that would hit
one of your intentions, Mr. Chairman, is ... for those that wanna retain and remain on
their property. So maybe a "no-sell provision" consideration ... or something like the old
Ag dedication ...
· . . option that we provided landowners who had, was willing to farm
nonagricultural--you know, Lanai, you know, we had some areas in Urban, but Dole
decided that they're willing to make a dedicated seven-, ten-year period of cultivating
agriculture, pineapple, on Lanai, and therefore they would get the agricultural rate
consideration. Uh .. .it, that's, I would say that may be another option for this Committee
to consider. While I think the exemption for Improved Residential. . .is definitely a
viable option--and I'm, like you, Mr. Chairman, I think we need to look at what is doable
also-CHAIR KANE: Uh-huh.
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VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: --'cause good intentions without being able to implement. . .is a
wasted intention. So I would say that maybe under Improved Residential, if it makes
sense for us to add a PITT Code and make it Improved Residential and dash it as, under
qualified rental program. And we would state what, into the Code what is a qualified
rental. And I would say my ideas this afternoon, again, Mr. Chairman, you know, you
and the other Members have stirred my... my brain this, this afternoon that we might
wanna consider as a rate that will be Homeowners plus a certain percentage. We
currently have Homeowners at 2.50, Improved Residential at 5 dollars. While we, we
would acknowledge that rental is a "business", if they are providing, such as
Mr. Pontanilla's consideration of Section 8 which goes to the lower. .. spectrum of our, of
some of our family's earnings, then maybe we should give that property owner that has
Improved Residential a Homeowner's rate plus 10 percent, which would be 25 cents
more. So his rate would be 2.75 per thousand, Mr. Chairman, as one way to approach it.
So that he does have a definite tax break from the current 5 dollars, and yet since he's not
on the property, but providing... good rental to some of our residents, that he gets a
preferred rate. And maybe it's 2.75, then which is slightly more than the Homeowner.
And, and I would say that I would ask the Members to consider a "qualified" rental.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yeah.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Because "affordable" is depend what you earn. So for the guy that's
earning more than six figures a year, 5,000 dollars a month is not unaffordable.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: ... (inaudible) . ..
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: But as a, you know, we have had information, statistics--I think
Ms. Anderson shared about the amount of people that come below the 140 percent, below
the 100 percent median... what is afford for, for them. I would say maybe we wanna
look at a qualified rental category so that if you provide, let's say, 140, 100 percent to
140... although it's not Section 8, maybe you get Homeowners plus 20 percent. So your
tax, preferred tax rate would be 3 dollars instead of 5 dollars on the Improved
Residential.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Right.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Whereby the County is still receiving some revenue ...not this full
amount, but it makes sense to allow that property owner to have some consideration of
tax breaks to allow him to continue to afford ... qualified rental assistance to those within
their limited income spectrums .
. . . So I'm just tossing this out. Again .. .is it doable? We need the Department's
comments back. But I just share this as another tool and another way oftrying to achieve
the Chairman's goal of, oflooking at the 10 percent cap. And maybe that, we might end
up with that or a hybrid. But I'm just. .. asking the Members that, you know, this
afternoon, as the Chairman have asked us, I'm providing food for thought and other ways
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to ...well, I won't say "skin the cat", but to approach the taxation issue and the bill,
ability--and I would agree ... (laughter) . .. 'cause there are those that cannot afford to
own yet, Chairman. And I think we need to be very realistic and upfront to deal with the
rental sector of our community. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. And before I recognize you, Member Anderson ...the Chair
recognizes that the basis of the discussion is on two measures that are temporary in
nature, two year. But I think the intent is to get the juices flowing, if you will, so that
when we have minutes ... that we can extract out. And your Chair, along with the Staff,
with your approval, we can put other things out. It is in no way meant for the Chair to
take any type of credit. This is a collective effort by this body. And so we're gonna do
our best to extract out from this discussion what we can do to enhance the next discussion
and try to focus in on where this body really wants to go. So I appreciate the commcnts
that are being made ... the focus going in onto the rental side. And I think we have a lot
so far, and I'm looking for more ... by all means. So with that, Member Anderson,
followed by Member Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Chair. I just wanted to follow-up with ... what
Chair Hokama just said be .. .I think that's a good idea. I like the idea of, you know, a
preferred rate. I know myself, and I've gotten lots of e-mails and I'm sure you folks have
too, about people who have been booted out of their rental because ... thc assessment
went up and their, their rent went up or the assessment went up and the landlord decided
to sell.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And that's happening a lot right now. And .. .(cleared
throat). .. I think I'm probably in the same boat as a lot of renters. There's a house for
sale on my block. And I pray every night it doesn't sell .. .(laughter) . .. because then
that means my rent's gonna go beyond what I can afford. And I know there's a lot of
people in that situation. So I like that idea. And I, I like the idea of something that we
can use ... beyond a two year, you know, something long range. Although, I do
appreciate the two-year ...
. . . trial, you know, to see how these things can work. What I was wondering is
maybe ... you know, a lot of this is predicated on the real estate market. We're in the
problem we're in because of the real estate market. And we know that the trend is
changing. And, and Ijust saw something--Baron's is saying real estate is not the place to
put your money now. So it's already on the down-slope on the mainland. How is it
affecting us here on Maui? Because we are a different real estate market. And, because
we are primarily... you know ...well, a resort market, resort retail. .. real estate market.
So I'm sure it's gonna affect us a little bit differently because we have a different
clientele .. .if you will. So I'm wondering if maybe at the next meeting we could request
a report from the realtors association or somebody.. .like that? They may not be so
willing to be free with what's going on, but maybe somebody else would. I, I think that
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we need to get a fair picture of what's going on with the real estate market, how ... you
know, what sales are like, how the down-turn on the mainland is affecting us. I've heard
in the past .. many, many, many years ago that, you know, it usually takes like ... five
years .. .the maximum, five years for whatever happens on the mainland to reflect back
here. And I don't think that's the case anymore. I think it's a little bit more immediate.
CHAIR KANE: ... Six months.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Six months?
CHAIR KANE: A six-month lag.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So I think we should look at that because .. .in six months,
we may not need this ... (laughter) . .. because we may not even have 10 percent
increases in, in the sale of market .. priced housing or anything. You know, the, the
bubble may have burst already and we just don't know it yet So I think we need to look
at the big picture before we spend a lot of time in making adjustments that .. are really,
what we're doing is ...we're reacting to the escalating values of the past five years. But
that may not be with us anymore. So I would like us to get some kind of take on what's
happening right here, right now. And ...
. . . I'm sure there's somebody out there that can give us that information. If it's not the
reaL . .real estate association, mortgage bankers, a bank, somebody should know what the
trend is. And, you know, all it takes is a printout of. .. MLS to show what's going on.
And I think that would be very helpful in our deliberation.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. I think comments by Paul Brewbaker, et cetera, provides a pretty
accurate picture of, of what the trends are ... you know, what's occurring. So we can, as,
without objections, Members, we'll do our best to try and obtain additional information
for the next discussion.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Member Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: And I think that's very appropriate ... course of action
because if you read the ads, just reading the ads, the terminology--price reduction... for
sale by owner ...
. . . attractive deal--all of these .. .I guess, if you will, these terms are used in a, in a
down-turn. So there is some, I think, buyers resistance. And I think it's showing up
through price reductions in a lot of these sales. And I think that's evidenced by the
comments that people make when they're trying to sell their home. My question had to
do with condominium property regime, when it's applied ... to this particular measure on
the homeowner side. Currently, let's say you've got a two-acre property and there's two
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separate owners. One owns the ohana unit, one has the homeowner's exemption on the
main unit. And Mr. Young was kind enough to go over with me yesterday 'canse I had
some qnestions about a particular area. Each one of those individuals now is getting the
homeowner exemption. So ordinarily you would get a 300,000 dollar exemption attached
to a TMK. But the way that it's being applied is when it's CPR'd, each one of those
people files for the homeowner's exemption. So there's a 300,000 and a 300,000 on the
same TMK, which doubles. So you've got 600,000 dollars now ... exemption going to
one TMK. My .. .question would be is your intention or is it something that we should
look at as a Committee to just /lot apply this in areas where it's CPR'd because they're
already getting a double exemption .. .if they both file for homeowners on that one TMK.
CHAIR KANE: Frankly... the ... that was not taken into consideration at all. It was not
even...thought about. So I believe that it's relevant to the discussion. But it, it's not part
of what we have-COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Uh-huh.
CHAIR KANE: --as a proposal for a starting point for today's discussion.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay, well, my suggestion would then be that at some point
we should maybe take a look at that and then find classifications where we would draft
some kind of exception to say unless it's part of a condominium property regime or
CPR'd property. Because I don't think it's right for ... {laughter} . .. you know, two
homeowners exemptions to be granted to one TMK.
CHAIR KANE: Yeah. Keep in mind that we're not discussing a homeowner exemption in this
case. This is the cap that we're talking abont.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I know. But even in the cap situation where you've got
people that are currently--because this is applied to the Homeowner's c1assification--I'm
not sure if it should be applicable to people that would have a CPR.
CHAIR KANE: No-COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: --Mister. .. Young, do you have any comments or, Mr. Teruya, specific to how
a CPR and how you read this? Again, it was not even taken into consideration,
but. .. how you folks view this and, and ifthere's a potential impact? Uh ...
MR. TERUYA: ... Yeah, I, I ...
MR. YOUNG: Well ... uh ...
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... the example that Ms. Johnson is referring to is an instance in which someone could
potentially benefit if they were to condominiumized or CPR, condominium property
regime a, a single-family lot or parcel. However. .. on the technical aspect, there, there
could be some--we would have to proceed cautiously because CPR properties, you know,
do account for any condominiumized property. So we would even be taking about. .. you
know, potentially townhouse developments, condominiumized apartments ... commercial
properties that are condominiumized. So .. .if the Council looks into this area, it, there
would have to be some more intricate review of the technical aspects of CPR properties.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Yeah.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Yeah.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, thank you for those comments. Any additional comments at this point?
Member Tavares?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Thank you, Mr. Chair. 1. . .I'm really am encouraged by the
con ... conversation and discussion today. I'm glad it's, it's going out here 'cause I think
this is the kind of. . .instance where we get a lot of good ideas that come forward and, and
some of the off-the-wall things might be the ones that we actually adopt. But I like the
idea, very much, of looking at the rentals and doing something in, in the way of either the
exemption or the one that Mr. Hokama is ... proposing or threw out on the table. You
know, I had almost envisioned--because I did, I did look at. .. what the affordable rental
guidelines by HUD as being tied into what is affordable. And to, I mean, it could even be
a sliding scale ... based on the number of rooms in the house and coinciding with also the,
the ...
. . . qualification for the renter or anything like that. But there are a lot, I, 1 think there
are, are great number of people that want rentals. And 1 think this document also had the,
the housing study need in it, but it was about 50 percent, as 1 recall. So there are lots of
folks that, I think, now are being subjected to--and 1 don't blame the landlords or the
people who own the houses that, that are being rented, I don't blame them because, you
know, I've heard more than one occasion now of people who have ... another dwelling
that they rent out, but because the rents are getting so ... they're having to raise the rents
to meet the tax obligation that their either, one, selling it. .. most are selling it or they're
just breaking down the house. And so that's not going to rent. Another instance was
someone who was renting to a person who's willing to do the caretaking... of the
property, so they only rent it for, like, you know, under 100 dollars a month because it's
kind of a big property. But now that person, you know, is having to, to look at selling
that, that parcel, too, because they can't afford to not have revenue to pay for the rent
increases. So I think we're, and these are just, like local people that have been here for
years and years that are sharing this with me. And, and it is a sad state of affairs that
maybe we're not taxing them out of their homes, but we're ...1 mean, the, the situation is
that the taxes are going so high on their other home that they were hoping to leave for
their kids or pass on to their family, that now they're gonna have to sell 'cause the can't
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pay the taxes. So I think we've got a critical situation that has already occurred here on
Maui. And, you know, I think we need to address the rental part. I think like, I think
Mr. Mateo was saying, you know, we've done a lot in the homeowner's part. And ... as
far as I, looking, look, as far as I'm concerned, I wanna see us get into the rental area as
soon as possible. And if that means we delay or not do anything more with the
homeowners in this proposal, that that would be fine. Because I think we all said in the
discussion during Budget time that we want to address this particular issue with rentals.
And if we take it and just focus on that, I think we'll be doing a lot for people that really
need that, the help. So, thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Further discussion, Members? And I'm not gonna draw a
conclusion yet, until the body as a whole gives me some guidance. We have two bills
before us. There's a homeowner exemption, or excuse me, a Homeowner classification
with a cap of 10 percent, that's before us and it's for a limited time period, for two years.
And we've talked about the intent of that Item. The Improved Residential, the original
intent, again, is to reach out towards the renter, but we know that we've missed a major
category, the Apartment component. I think the discussion has evolved to demonstrate
that this body is very interested in helping that side. For the Homeowner side, though, to
try and bring some guidance there. Does this body have the intent on not doing anything
with this? Because if so, then the Chair can look at having this item deferred and then,
and the intent would not to bring it back.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Uh-huh.
CHAIR KANE: Keep in mind the two year, anything over 10 percent, although we, we're
hearing of the back-end of the curve and the .. .1 think many of us in our own ways have
heard what's going on--people trying to sell their houses are trying to bailout quick
because the market's falling out already. But that still will not prevent certain areas from
still having increases above, over and above 10 percent, which we also know is gonna
still continue to occur. So, and that could be in affordable areas as well, where the houses
are 4, 5, 6, 700,000 dollars where, that's where our middle class, you know, our group is
that, our core...working group is. So the Chair would like to see us continue to have a
discussion on the Homeowner side because we don't wannajust walk away from that-VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Uh-huh.
CHAIR KANE: That's your Chair's opinion. But if the body feels that that should not be
something that we should continue discussing, the Chair is amenable to that and will not
bring that back, and instead we can focus on the rental side. We can extract out what
discussion we've had today and make an attempt to put something that's revised on the
table for, for further discussion. So I'll leave it at that and then open it up for our final
round before the Chair's intent is to defer this, this particular item for a next. .. next round
later on. Member Hokama?
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VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Chainnan, thank you for your thoughts. It would be my
preference, Mr. Chainnan ... to still keep this two ordinance proposals alive. One, I
would ask you to consider is whether or not it may be helpful for us to expand ... either
the title or BF-92 or place it under a broader umbrella so that some of the additional
comments that the Members have shared this afternoon can, can also be included in a
properly noticed Budget and Finance meeting ... (end of tape, start 3B). .. keep all of the
options available for further discussion, Mr. Chairman, because ... we may go around 360
and end up with your proposal again. So I, I, I would ask that we not. .. eliminate it from
the options that are available to this Committee, but to find a way that we can still keep it
and ... allow ... further discussion on other, the other considerations brought forward by
the Members as well as allow the Department and Division to give their comments,
should they have other variations of our proposals. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Member Mateo, followed by Member Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Chainnan, thank you very much. I, I concur with Member,
Member Hokama. I, I believe at this particular point, for all of us, we know that regard,
that in regards to Homeowners, we do know that we wanna provide continued relief. The
question for us at this particular point is what is that number. Is 10 percent the right
number? Is 4 percent? Is 2 percent? And I think that's gonna be the focus of the
discussion. And I think we'd be able to, you know, somehow reach a resolve in our
continued discussions. The, the importance for me, Chainnan, is dealing with the other,
the second ordinance because it does address an area that we have not focused in on
adequately. And I think we should keep both ordinances alive because I believe the first
ordinance relative to Homeowners is one that we can address a little faster than perhaps
the second one that's relative to rentals. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Uh-huh.
CHAIR KANE: Member Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes, and I, I just think we should keep everything on the
table. I just think it's better because it broadens the discussion and I think it brings other
suggestions from the public that we might not have considered. So I just think that the
public, they have so many great ideas. Many of the people have called us individually.
So just leave it there and have people give us their suggestions, too, as to how we might
address some of the issues that we've raised this afternoon. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you.
Member Pontanilla.

Any further comments?

Member Molina, followed by

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah, thank you, Mr. Chainnan. I'll add my two cents in and
support you keeping alive the two proposals here. But mainly I appreciate you
- 60 -

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

August 29, 2006

continuing the process ... to provide relief for our residents in both the Homeowners and
renters as well, while balancing the concerns ... that we need to be aware of for County
government to continue functioning to provide the services that our citizens
demand--parks, police, fire, et cetera, water, you name it. So I, I think it's important that
we come up with something along the way that ensures our ability to provide the
services. Because demands !Tom the people will not go away when it comes to services
provided by this County. So my hat's off to you, Mr. Chairman, and ... you know, as
soon as possible we can continue looking into this, these two proposals so we can meet
the needs of our public. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Molina. Mister. .. Mr. PontanilJa?
COUNCILMEMBER PONT ANILLA: Thank you, Chair. Thank you for bringing forward this
two draft bills. I think we need more discussion on, on one of 'em at least. Question for
the Department--thank you for .. .(laughter). .. providing us the information in regards
to the 10 percent cap. Was it difficult to do it, and if you could do a 2 percent cap?
MR. YOUNG: ... Well. . .it did take a fair amount of work to evaluate on system. However,
with the 10 percent ...numbers, if the ordinance stayed the same and you applied the
2 percent or if there was any ... derivation of the 10 percent, you can just take a pro rata
portion of the, the values that are provided.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Yeah. Okay. Thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Member Tavares?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVAR.ES: Yeah, thank you. Yeah, I have no problem with keeping
everything on, on the table. I think it's, it's good. And particularly in the Homeowner's
one because I see that, you know, the parcels benefiting !Tom the cap is like only
11 percent. So if that 11 percent can benefit !Tom the cap, I think we should consider it
also .
. . . I don't know if further that 2,668 ... of those parcels can be divided up or. . .if we can
get the, what are the valuations of those properties. I don't know ifthat's possible.
MR. YOUNG: Well. . .if, if we wanted to take a closer look at the number, we could. The
number or the impact on ... the cap, the Members should keep in mind would change
because when the Council changes by lowering or increasing the tax rate, that could
affect how many applicable properties are gonna-COUNCILMEMBER TAVAR.ES: Uh-huh.
MR. YOUNG: --benefit !Tom the cap. So the Homeowner's one is only 11 percent, but keep in
mind that the reason why it's so low is because the Council did increase the homeowner's
exemption to 300,000, as well as reducing the tax rate for Homeowners. So that's why
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the number of hits is so low in that category, as opposed to when you look at the
Improved Residential, where the Council did lower, I believe, the Improved Residential,
but not as substantially as Homeowners, and there is no other exemption benefit. So
that's why the, the count is so high.
COUNCILMEMBER T AVARES: Okay.
MR. YOUNG: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Any final comments, Members? Members, the Chair will just
want to in, in closing, before the Chair makes the recommendation to defer the
items--thank you for your comments on keeping these things alive. I, I think that what
the Chair will instruct the Staff, with your approval, is to see if we can--as
Member Hokama stated--try to broaden this particular item to have more ability to
provide the information to be discussed more, with more flexibility, without going too far
beyond the parameters of the item and its title, with the two bills that are contained within
this item number. Keep in mind, Members, that the reason why these bills were created
simplistically . .. was, first, we tried to look at why, what might be doable in working with
the Department to provide some relatively... trying to provide relief and doing it in a
short time frame.
And then having that two years to provide the additional
discussion--which I know we're already kind of reaching into, as you can see.
Otherwise, Members, keep in mind that we may end up not having any relief at all, and
we're gonna come, we're quickly approaching... the next discussion on the Budget,
which is gonna be Fiscal Year '08 Budget discussion. So the, the intent is to have
something there that has ... something that will have legs that will be going into the next
budget cycle with something there providing the relief. So just wanna say that. I'll put it
in closing--keep your minds open and let's see if we can come up something next time
around or in the next couple of meetings and see if we can, the whole intent was to grab
the information or to engage the information gathering, but from it. .. to refine it and
bring it into where we can (a) agree on something and then make sure that's it's
applicable and workable from the Department's perspective. And that's really, in the
end, the intent. So the Chair appreciates the discussion. Thank you, Members, for your
active participation in it. Without objections, we'll go ahead and defer Item Number 92.
Members?
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you very much.
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS. (excused: MA aud JJ)
ACTION:

DEFER pending further discussion.
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CHAIR KANE:
Members, it's 4:35 ... this Committee meeting for Angust 29'\ 2006, the
Budget and Finance Committee of this Council is adjourned ... (gavel) . ..

ADJOURN:

4:36 p.m.

Transcribed by: Camille Sakamoto
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